Los Angeles City Council, Journal/Council Proceeding Friday, January 7, 2022

JOHN FERRARO COUNCIL CHAMBER ROOM 340, CITY HALL 200 NORTH SPRING STREET, LOS ANGELES, CA 90012 - 10:00 AM

(For further details see Official Council Files)

(For communications referred by the President see Referral Memorandum)

Roll Call

Members Present: Blumenfield, Bonin, Buscaino, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Lee, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (12); Absent: Krekorian, Raman (2)

Approval of the Minutes

Commendatory Resolutions, Introductions and Presentations - SEE ATTACHED

Multiple Agenda Item Comment

Public Testimony of Non-agenda Items Within Jurisdiction of Council

Items for which Public Hearings Have Not Been Held - (10 Votes Required for Consideration)

(1) 20-0291

RESOLUTION relative to the Declaration of Local Emergency by the Mayor, dated March 4, 2020, wherein he declared that conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen both internationally and within the United States as a result of the introduction of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19), pursuant to the provisions of the Los Angeles Administrative Code (LAAC) Section 8.27.

Recommendation for Council action:

Adopt the accompanying RESOLUTION to:

 Resolve that a local emergency continues to persist within the City of Los Angeles, within the meaning of Los Angeles Administrative Code Section 8.21, et seq., and the continuance of the Mayor's March 4, 2020, Declaration of Local Emergency through 30 days from the adoption of this Resolution is therefore necessary.

- 2. Direct, in accordance with the LAAC, Section 8.21 et seq., all appropriate City departments, agencies and personnel shall continue to perform all duties and responsibilities to represent the City of Los Angeles in this matter for the purpose of abating the emergency and for the receipt, processing and coordination of all inquiries and requirements necessary to obtain whatever State and Federal assistance that may become available to the citizens of Los Angeles who may be affected by the emergency.
- 3. Instruct the General Manager, Emergency Management Department, to advise the Mayor and City Council on the need for extension of this Declaration of Local Emergency as may be required.
- 4. Instruct the City Clerk to forward copies of this Resolution to the Governor of the State of California, the Director of the California Office of Emergency Services, and the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors.

Adopted Item Forthwith

Ayes: Blumenfield, Bonin, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Krekorian, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (11); Nays: Buscaino, Lee (2); Absent: Raman (1)

(2) **21-1189**

COMMUNICATION FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY relative to finding in accordance with AB 361 Section 3(e)(1)(B) whether meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees because of the continuing state of emergency related the Covid-19 pandemic, as originally proclaimed by the Governor on March 4, 2020; related actions.

Recommendations for Council action:

1. FIND in accordance with AB 361 Section 3(e)(3) that, while the state of emergency due to the Covid-19 pandemic, as originally proclaimed by the Governor on March 4, 2020, remains active and/or state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing, the City Council has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency and finds for City Council, including its advisory Committees, that the state of emergency continues to directly impact

- the ability of the members to meet safely in person and/or state or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing.
- 2. FIND in accordance with AB 361 Section 3(e)(3) that, while the state of emergency due to the Covid-19 pandemic, as originally proclaimed by the Governor on March 4, 2020, remains active and/or state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing, the City Council has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency and finds for all City Brown Act bodies that the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and/or state or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing.
- 3. INSTRUCT the Clerk to place on the agenda for a Council meeting not more than 30 calendar-days after Council adopts these findings and recommendations an item entitled "Findings to Continue Teleconference Meetings Pursuant to AB 361 and Related Actions" and include these same recommendations for adoption by Council; and instruct the Clerk to continue to do so on the agenda for a Council meeting not more than 30 calendar-days after each time Council adopts these findings and recommendations, until Council instructs the Clerk to cease doing so.

Adopted Item Forthwith Ayes: Blumenfield, Bonin, Buscaino, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Krekorian, Lee, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (13); Nays: (0); Absent: Raman (1)

(3) **21-1440 CD** 7

MOTION (RODRIGUEZ – BLUMENFIELD) relative to funding for transportation-related safety projects in Council District 7.

Recommendations for Council action, SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE MAYOR:

 TRANSFER and APPROPRIATE the unallocated / unencumbered balance in the Council District 7 portion of the Athens Services Community Benefits Trust Fund No. 56W/14 to the Department of Transportation's Account No. 840 for the installation of a pedestrian hybrid beacon at the intersection of La Tuna Canyon Road and Canter Lane in Shadow Hills.

2. AUTHORIZE the Department of Transportation to make any technical corrections or clarifications to the above instructions in order to effectuate the intent of this Motion.

Adopted Item Forthwith

Ayes: Blumenfield, Bonin, Buscaino, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Krekorian, Lee, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (13); Nays: (0); Absent: Raman (1)

(4) **21-1441 CD 4**

MOTION (RAMAN – PRICE) relative to funding for the installation of a gate allowing the closure of the top portion of a public stairway located at 3020 and 3030 Beachwood Drive in Council District 4.

Recommendations for Council action, SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE MAYOR:

- TRANSFER and APPROPRIATE \$3,312 in the Council District 4 portion of the Street Revenue Fund No. 43D/50 to the General Services Fund No. 100/40, as follows: \$3,012 to Account No. 001014 (Salaries Construction) and \$300 to Account No. 003180 (Construction Materials and Supplies) for the installation of a gate allowing the closure of the top portion of a public stairway at 3020 and 3030 Beachwood Drive in CD 4.
- 2. AUTHORIZE that the Department of General Services to make any corrections, clarifications or revisions to the above fund transfer instructions, including any new instructions, in order to effectuate the intent of this Motion, and including any corrections and changes to fund or account numbers; said corrections / clarifications / changes may be made orally, electronically or by any other means.

Adopted Item to Continue to January 12, 2022

Ayes: Blumenfield, Bonin, Buscaino, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Lee, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (12); Nays: (0); Absent: Krekorian, Raman (2)

(5) **21-1437 CD 8**

MOTION (HARRIS-DAWSON – BONIN) relative to a contract with Redeemer Community Partnership to perform community engagement services for the Normandie Beautiful Streetscape Project.

Recommendations for Council action:

- 1. AUTHORIZE StreetsLA to negotiate and execute a sole source contract, subject to the approval as to form by the City Attorney, with Redeemer Community Partnership, for an amount not to exceed \$244,500 from the Normandie 5 CRA/LA Excess Bond Proceeds Fund (Fund No. 57D), to perform community engagement services for the Normandie Beautiful Streetscape Project and grant applications to pursue additional funding for the Project.
- 2. FIND that the services to be performed by Redeemer Community Partnership are for the performance of professional, scientific, expert, technical, or other special services of a temporary and occasional character for which competitive bidding is not practicable or advantageous and that the work can be performed more economically or feasibly by independent contractors than by City employees.

Adopted Item Forthwith

Ayes: Blumenfield, Bonin, Buscaino, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Krekorian, Lee, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (13); Nays: (0); Absent: Raman (1)

(6) **21-1452**

MOTION (MARTINEZ – PRICE) relative to funding for the Heritage Month Celebrations and Special Events at City Hall on January 11, 2022.

Recommendation for Council action, SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE MAYOR:

TRANSFER and APPROPRIATE \$400 from the Council's portion of the Heritage Month Celebrations and Special Events line item in the General

City Purposes Fund No. 100/56 to the General Services Fund No. 100/40, Account No. 1070 (Salaries-As Needed) for the Council District 6 special recognition of Human Trafficking Awareness Day at City Hall on January 11, 2022, including the illumination of City Hall.

Adopted Item Forthwith

Ayes: Blumenfield, Bonin, Buscaino, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Krekorian, Lee, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (13); Nays: (0); Absent: Raman (1)

(7) **21-1455 CD 5**

MOTION (KORETZ – BLUMENFIELD) relative to coordinating a street banner to promote participation in local government and to assist the City of Los Angeles in working together to preserve our hillsides and build a better community.

Recommendations for Council action:

- APPROVE, in accordance with Los Angeles Municipal Code Section 62.132, the Street Banner program being coordinated by the Bel Air Beverly Crest Neighborhood Council, as a City of Los Angeles Non-Event Street Banner Program for the period of February 2022 to February 2023.
- 2. APPROVE the content of the street banner designs as attached to the Council file.

Adopted Item Forthwith

Ayes: Blumenfield, Bonin, Buscaino, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Krekorian, Lee, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (13); Nays: (0); Absent: Raman (1)

(8) **21-1453**

MOTION (DE LEON – PRICE) relative to coordinating a street banner across the L.A. region to celebrate and recognize Super Bowl LVI, which will be held on February 13, 2022.

Recommendations for Council action:

- APPROVE, in accordance with Los Angeles Municipal Code Section 62.132, the Street Banner program being coordinated by the Los Angeles Super Bowl Host Committee, as a City of Los Angeles Nonevent Street Banner Program for the period of January 1, 2022 to February 31, 2022.
- 2. APPROVE the content of the street banner designs, as attached to the Council file.

Adopted Item Forthwith

Ayes: Blumenfield, Bonin, Buscaino, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Krekorian, Lee, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (13); Nays: (0); Absent: Raman (1)

(9) **21-0010-S24**

MOTION (MARTINEZ for HARRIS-DAWSON – BLUMENFIELD) relative to an offer of reward for information leading to the identification, apprehension, and conviction of the person or persons responsible for the death of Marcelis Gude on June 15, 2021.

Recommendations for Council action, SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE MAYOR:

- 1. PROVIDE an offer of reward in the amount of \$50,000 for information leading to the identification, apprehension, and conviction of the person or persons responsible for the death of Marcelis Gude on June 15, 2021.
- 2. FIND that the subject reward complies with the provisions of Chapter 12, Article 1, Division 19, of the Los Angeles Administrative Code.
- 3. DIRECT the City Clerk to publish the required notices and/or advertisements to effectuate this reward.
- DIRECT the City Clerk to publish the reward notice in the Our Weekly, Los Angeles Sentinel and LA Watts Times in addition to the regular

publications used by the City Clerk for reward notices, to ensure adequate community notice.

Adopted Item Forthwith

Ayes: Blumenfield, Bonin, Buscaino, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Krekorian, Lee, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (13); Nays: (0); Absent: Raman (1)

(10) **21-1454 CD 15**

MOTION (BUSCAINO – BONIN) relative to funding to support the Harbor Boulevard Linear Park Project.

Recommendation for Council action, SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE MAYOR:

AUTHORIZE the Community Investment for Families Department to:

- a. Reprogram \$500,000 in Community Development Block Grant funds included in the Program Year 47 (2021-22) Consolidated Plan from the Wilmington Multipurpose and Senior Center Improvements line item to the Harbor Boulevard Linear Park Project line item.
- b. Effectuate an amendment to the Consolidated Plan, if necessary.
- c. Prepare additional technical corrections and/or Controller instructions that may be necessary to effectuate the intent of this Motion, subject to the approval of the Chief Legislative Analyst, and authorize the Controller to implement these instructions.

Adopted Item Forthwith

Ayes: Blumenfield, Bonin, Buscaino, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Krekorian, Lee, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (13); Nays: (0); Absent: Raman (1)

(11) 21-1473

CD 12

COMMUNICATION FROM THE CITY ENGINEER relative to the final map of Tract No. 50506 located at 20900 West Sesnon Boulevard, westerly of Mason Avenue.

Recommendation for Council action:

APPROVE the final map of Tract No. 50506, located at 20900 West Sesnon Boulevard, westerly of Mason Avenue and accompanying Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Contract with security documents.

(Bond No. C-139595)

Subdivider: Porter Ranch Development Co.; Surveyor: Robert L. Wheeler IV

<u>Fiscal Impact Statement:</u> The City Engineer reports that the subdivider has paid a fee of \$24,700 for the processing of this final tract map pursuant to Section 19.02(A) (2) of the Los Angeles Municipal Code. No additional City funds are needed.

Community Impact Statement: None submitted.

Adopted Item Forthwith

Ayes: Blumenfield, Bonin, Buscaino, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Krekorian, Lee, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (13); Nays: (0); Absent: Raman (1)

Items Called Special

Motions for Posting and Referral - SEE ATTACHED

Council Members' Requests for Excuse from Attendance at Council Meetings

Adjourning Motions - SEE ATTACHED

Council Adjournment

ENDING ROLL CALL

Blumenfield, Bonin, Buscaino, Cedillo, de León, Harris-Dawson, Koretz, Krekorian, Lee, Martinez, O'Farrell, Price, Rodriguez (13); Absent: Raman (1)

Whereupon the Council did adjourn.

ATTEST: Holly L. Wolcott, CITY CLERK

Ву

Council Clerk

PRESIDENT OF THE CITY COUNCIL

COMMENDATORY RESOLUTIONS

MOVED BY	SECONDED BY	NAME
Cedillo	Price	Del Richardson Price
Koretz	De Leon	Diane Sydell
Krekorian	O'Farrell	Diane Sydell
Cedillo	De Leon	Sergeant II Alejandra Fiallos

ADJOURNING MOTIONS

MOVED BY	SECONDED BY	NAME
Lee	All Councilmembers	Arjit Reddy Chettupalli and
		Akshata Reddy Chettupalli

MOTION

The United Neighborhoods of Historic Arlington Heights, West Adams and Jefferson Park Communities Neighborhood Council (UNNC) has coordinated a street banner campaign to celebrate these diverse communities and to encourage heightened involvement and participation in UNNC activities. This is a continuing effort by UNNC that is anticipated to take place through March 2023.

THEREFORE MOVE that the City Council, in accordance with Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) Section 62.132, approve the Street Banner Program coordinated by the United Neighborhoods Neighborhood Council, as a City of Los Angeles Non-Event Street Banner Program, for the period of March 2022 to March 2023.

I FURTHER MOVE that the City Council approve the content of the attached street banner design.

PRESENTED BY:

NURY MARTINEZ

Councilmember, 6th District

SECONDED BY:

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON

Councilmember, 8th District

UNITED NEIGHBORHOODS

Neighborhood Council

celebrates our

HISTORIC COMMUNITIES





UNNE

(323) 731-8686 www.unnc.org

MOTION

The Tarzana Neighborhood Council is coordinating a street banner campaign. The purpose of the street banner campaign is to promote the Tarzana Neighborhood Council and encourage participation.

I THEREFORE MOVE that the City Council, in accordance with Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) Section 62.132, approve the Street Banner program being coordinated by the Tarzana Neighborhood Council, as a City of Los Angeles Non-Event Street Banner Program for the period of April 3, 2022 to April 3, 2023.

I FURTHER MOVE that the City Council approve the content of the attached street banner design.

PRESENTED BY:

BOB BLUMENFIELI

Councilmember, 3rd District

Dein a Ken

SECONDED BY:

kat

9

TARZANA NEIGHBORHOOD - Wind Slits COUNCIL STREET SIDE Welcome to Tarzana Wind Slits TARZANANC.ORG File Notes: Image A: Vector Image B: Vector Type:Vector Color: CMYK Finish Size: 35"x 96" 4.5" Pole Pockets 4 Wind Slits 4 Wind Slits Originals: Ilustrator City Requirement City Requirement Approved with changes noted Approved as shown NOT APPROVED Show revised proof Contact ASAP

Client: Tarzana Neighborhood Council

Project: CLPB

Notes:

Banner B

Today's Date: 1/17/2021

Page: 1/1

Banner A

MOTION

The Councilmember of the Fourteenth District has expressed the need for a personal services contract with Counterintuity, LLC, for expertise the Councilmember needs relative to his Council Office that is not otherwise available. The proposed services to be performed are of an expert and technical nature and are temporary and occasional in character. The term of the contract will be from September 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022 and the Contractor is to receive an amount not to exceed \$32,350 for its services. There are funds available in the Council Office Budget to meet this request.

I THEREFORE MOVE that the attached personal services contract with Counterintuity, LLC for providing services to the Fourteenth Council District as set for therein, be approved.

I FURTHER MOVE that the Councilmember of the Fourteenth District be authorized to execute this contract on behalf of the City, and that the City Clerk is instructed to encumber the necessary funds against the Contractual Services Account of the Council Fund for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 and to reflect it as a charge against the budget of the involved Council Office.

PRESENTED BY:

KEVIN DE LEÓN

Councilmember, 14th District

Dein a Ken

SECONDED BY: Paul Koretz

JAN 0 7 2022

as

AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (hereinafter, "Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the CITY OF LOS ANGELES, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter "City") by and through the Fourteenth Council District ("14th Council District" herein) and COUNTERINTUITY, LLC, (hereinafter, "Contractor") with reference to the following facts:

WHEREAS, the services to be performed by the Contractor are for the performance of professional, scientific, expert, technical, or other special services of a temporary and occasional character for which competitive bidding is not practicable or advantageous and the work can be performed more economically or feasibly by independent contractors than by City employees; and

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR is an agency with extensive expertise in digital marketing and has worked for more than ten years providing services such as website development and maintenance to businesses, non-profit organizations, and governments agencies such as the City of Burbank, Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, and local elected officials; and

WHEREAS, the necessary funds are available in the Council Office Budget and have been appropriated for such purposes:

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

As requested by the Councilmember of the Fourteenth District the Contractor will provide website design and development services including but not limited to custom website programming that features functions that highlight accomplishments, community events, and news specific to the 14th Council District, an events calendar, and a mapping filter that will enable constituents to search for events by location more easily. The Contractor will also host the website for 12 months to update content and ensure that contact forms and other website features work properly.

- 1. The term of this Agreement shall commence on September 1, 2021 and shall terminate on September 30, 2022.
- 2. The City will pay the Contractor twenty thousand three hundred and fifty dollars (\$20,350) upon completion of the website's design, programming, and launch including website components designed to comply with the American Disabilities Act. The City will also pay the Contractor one thousand dollars (\$1,000) per month for twelve months for website hosting and maintenance. The Contractor shall perform said services in accordance with a scope of work approved by the Councilmember. The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices indicating therein the services performed for which payment is requested. Said invoice shall be submitted in accordance with the approved scope of work as provided therein and shall be subject to the approval of the Councilmember of the Fourteenth District or his designee.
- 3. The City's total obligation under this Agreement shall not exceed thirty two thousand three hundred and fifty dollars (\$32,350) which is comprised of \$20,350 for website designing,

programming, and launching and \$12,000 for twelve months of website hosting and maintenance.

- 4. Due to the need for the Contractor's services to be provided continuously on an ongoing basis, the Contractor may have provided services prior to the execution date of this Agreement. To the extent that said services were performed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, those services are hereby ratified.
- 5. The Councilmember of the Fourteenth District or his designee may terminate this contract by giving a minimum of 30 days written notice thereof to the Contractor. In the event of such termination, the Contractor shall be paid for hours worked prior to the effective date of termination.
- 6. The Contractor agrees to present monthly reports at the request of the Councilmember of the Fourteenth District setting forth its performance of the tasks required in fulfilling the terms of this contract; and, further that any and all data, information, conclusions, recommendations, and reports originated hereunder shall become the sole property of the City for its use in any manner and for any purpose.
- 7. The Contractor shall comply with Los Angeles Administrative Code Section 10.50 et seq., 'Disclosure of Border Wall Contracting.' The City may terminate this Contract at any time if the City determines that the Contractor failed to fully and accurately complete the required affidavit and disclose all Border Wall Bids and Border Wall Contracts, as defined in LAAC Section 10.50.1.
- Employees of Contractor and/or persons working on its behalf, including, but not limited 8. to, subcontractors (collectively, "Contractor Personnel") must be fully vaccinated against the novel coronavirus 2019 ("COVID-19") prior to (1) interacting in person with City employees, contractors, or volunteers, (2) working on City property while performing services under this Agreement, and/or (3) coming into contact with the public while performing services under this Agreement (collectively, "In-Person Services"). "Fully vaccinated" means that 14 or more days have passed since Contractor Personnel has received the final dose of a two-dose COVID-19 vaccine series (Moderna or Pfizer-BioNTech) or a single dose of a one-dose COVID-19 vaccine (Johnson & Johnson/Janssen) and all booster doses recommended by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Prior to assigning Contractor Personnel to perform In-Person Services. Contractor shall obtain proof that such Contractor Personnel has been fully vaccinated. The contractor shall retain such proof for the document retention period set forth in this Agreement. The contractor shall grant medical or religious exemptions to Contractor Personnel as required by law.
- Hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement are the Standard Provisions for City Contracts (Rev. 10/114) [v.3] in effect as of the date of the execution of this Agreement which are posted on the web site of the Los Angeles City Attorney at this specific web address: https://www.lacityattorney.org/.

- 10. In the event of any inconsistency between any of the provision of this Agreement and/or the appendices hereto, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order:
 - a. Provisions of this Agreement
 - b. Standard Provisions for City Contracts (Rev. 10/114) [v.3]
- 11. This Agreement includes four (4) pages which constitute the entire understanding and agreement of the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be duly executed as of the day and year herein written.

THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES	COUNTERINTUITY, LLC	
BY: KEVIN DE LEÓN Councilmember, 14 th District	BY: LEE WOCHNER Contractor	
Date:	Date:	
Attest: HOLLY WOLCOTT, City Clerk		
BY:	Date:	
Approved as to form: MICHAEL N. FEUER, City Attorney		
BY:	Date:	

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the California State Legislature and the Governor of California created the Local Jurisdiction Assistance Grant Program in the Budget Act of 2021; and

WHEREAS, the City of Los Angeles is eligible to apply for approximately \$22,312,360 in funding created by the State's Local Jurisdiction Assistance Grant Program to aid local applicants with the City of Los Angeles Department of Cannabis Regulation (DCR) in the transition from provisional licensure to annual licensure; and

WHEREAS, DCR submitted an application for the State's Local Jurisdiction Assistance Grant Program on November 15, 2021, and was awarded the full amount of \$22,312,360 on December 24, 2021; and

WHEREAS, an ongoing goal of DCR is to ensure the cannabis licensing and application processes in the City of Los Angeles are as accessible, equitable, and expedient as possible, and this grant funding will facilitate such goals:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director of DCR is authorized to execute by electronic signature on behalf of the City of Los Angeles the draft grant agreement attached hereto with the California Department of Cannabis Control, subject to City Attorney's review for form and legality, and including any extension or amendments thereof, and any subsequent grant agreement with the California Department of Cannabis Control in relation thereto.

PRESENTED BY:

MARQUEECE HARRIS-DAWSON

Councilmember, 8th District

SECONDED BY:

Councilmember, 9th District



GRANT AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE

	CALIFORNIA		AGREEMENT NUMBER
1.	This Agreement is entered into between t	the State Agency and the Re	cipient named below:
	STATE AGENCY'S NAME		
	DEPARTMENT OF CANNABIS CONTRO	OL (DCC)	
	RECIPIENT'S NAME		
Cit	y of Los Angeles Department o	of Cannabis Regulation	on
2.	The Agreement Term is: 01/01/2022 th	rough 06/30/2025	
3.	The maximum amount of this Agreement	is: \$ 22,312,360.00	
4.	The parties agree to comply with the term which are by this reference made a part of		ving exhibits and attachment
	Exhibit A-A1: A-Award Information and A-1 Permitting and Licensing Metrics	•	2-13 Page(s)
	Exhibit B: General Terms and Conditi	ons	14-18 Page(s)
	Exhibit C-C1: C-Payment and Budget	Provisions; C1 Budget	40.00 Paga/a\
	Worksheet		19-22 Page(s)
	Exhibit D : Special Terms and Condition	ons	23-26 Page(s)
IN V	VITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement ha	as been executed by the pa	rties hereto.
REC	CIPIENT'S NAME (Organization's Name)		
BY	(Authorized Signature)	DATE SIGNED	
Ø	(,,		
PRI	NTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SI	GNING	
		<u> </u>	
ADD	DRESS		
	-		
A 0 F	NCY NAME	OF CALIFORNIA	
	PARTMENT OF CANNABIS CONTROL		
	Authorized Signature)	DATE SIGNED	
Ø (
PRI	NTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SI	GNING	*

ADDRESS

EXHIBIT A

AWARD INFORMATION

Recipient:	City of Los Angeles Department of Cannabis Regulation	
Award Identification Number:	G21-015	
Award Date:	TBD	
Amount Awarded:	\$22,312,360.00	
Effective Dates:	01/01/2022 through 06/30/2025	
Federal Award to State Agency is Research & Development (Yes/No)		

RECIPIENT AND PROJECT INFORMATION

1. Department of Cannabis Control (DCC) hereby awards an Agreement to the Recipient for the project described herein:

City of Los Angeles Department of Cannabis Regulation

Project Title: Local Jurisdiction Assistance Grant

2. The Managers for this Agreement are:

FOR DCC:	FOR RECIPIENT:	
Name: Laura Barlow	Name: Rocky Wiles	
Division/Branch: Administrative / Acquisitions	Organization: City of Los Angeles Department of Cannabis Regulation	
Address: 2920 Kilgore Road	Address: 221 N. Figueroa Street, Suite 1245	
City/State/Zip: Rancho Cordova, CA 95670	City/State/Zip: Los Angeles, CA 90012	
Phone: (279) 217-3610	Phone: (213) 978-7176	
Email Address: Grants@cannabis.ca.gov	Email Address: Rocky.Wiles@lacity.org	

3. The Grant Administrative Contacts for this Agreement are:

FOR DCC:	FOR RECIPIENT:	
Name: Sara Banchero	Name: Rocky Wiles	
Division/Branch: Administrative / Acquisitions	Organization: City of Los Angeles Department of Cannabis Regulation	
Address: 2920 Kilgore Road	Address: 221 N. Figueroa Street, Suite 1245	
City/State/Zip: Rancho Cordova, CA 95670	City/State/Zip: Los Angeles, CA 90012	
Phone: (279) 217-3609	Phone: (213) 978-7176	
Email Address: Grants@cannabis.ca.gov	Email Address: Rocky.Wiles@lacity.org	

FISCAL CONTACT FOR RECIPIENT
(if different from above):
Name: OLANREWAJU ABIOSE
Organization: City of Los Angeles Department of Cannabis Regulation
Address: 221 N. Figueroa Street, Suite 1245
City/State/Zip: Los Angeles, CA 90012
Phone: (213) 847-3529
Email Address: olanrewaju.abiose@lacity.org

4. RECIPIENT: Please check appropriate box below:

Research and Development (R&D) means all research activities, both basic and applied, and all development activities that are performed by non-Federal entities. The term research also includes activities involving the training of individuals in research techniques where such activities utilize the same facilities as other R&D activities and where such activities are not included in the instruction function.

This award does does not support R&D.

5. For a detailed description of activities to be performed and duties, see Scope of Work and Budget.

EXHIBIT A Scope of Work

Contract	X	Grant
----------	---	-------

Executive Summary

The funds will be utilized to provide DCR resources that will assist provisional licensees complete locally administered processes that are necessary to meet DCC's requirements for annual licensure. Specifically, funds will allow DCR to retain new personnel and contractors who will administer processes related to CEQA and the City's annual licensing requirements; a provisional licensee must first complete CEQA and the City's annual licensing process in order to receive a DCC annual license. By retaining subject matter experts to review CEQA related information (project location, description and environmental setting etc.) and prepare environmental documents, DCR will be able to administer the CEQA requirements that are necessary for provisional licensees to transition into (DCC) annual licensees. Additionally, funds will be utilized to pay a contractor to prepare an updated environmental document that would allow the City's cannabis licensing application process to be a ministerial action rather than a discretionary action; this change would establish a long-term strategy to streamline future annual application processing at the local level in the City of Los Angeles. The City will also utilize this funding to expand DCR personnel; specifically to establish new positions who will be dedicated to CEQA-related and local annual licensing processes. Lastly, the funding will also be used to partially fund new positions associated with compliance administrative functions related to this grant and related contract management. By utilizing funding in this way, the City can ensure provisional licensees are able to make a timely transition to annual licenses consistent with deadlines established by the State of California.

Application Narrative

Program Description

Provide a brief description of the current cannabis permitting process in your jurisdiction, including the following:

1. Identify the necessary requirements for a local permit for commercial cannabis activity to be issued. Describe or attach a visual of your permitting process. Clearly identify when site-specific CEQA is conducted.

The City of Los Angeles has separated its cannabis business application process into four processes. The four distinct processes are, 1) Pre-Application Review, 2) Temporary Approval, 3) Annual License, and 4) Application Modification.

The first step in the process is Pre-Application Review as outlined in the Department's Pre-Application Review Information and Procedure Document (LIC-4002-IPB) and the Pre-Application Review Workflow (LIC-4002-WF), The purpose of the Pre-Application Review process is to verify land use and location compliance. In this review. applicants must identify one or more cannabis activities, submit a proposed business premises address and submit a Landowner Attestation: Location Eligibility Form (LIC-4016-FORM) where the property owner attests that the property is eligible to conduct cannabis activity in accordance with the City's municipal code. DCR reviews the location to verify compliance with applicable sensitive use and other zoning regulations for the cannabis business activity or activities for which the applicant is seeking licensure. After the applicant submits all required information, documents and forms, and pays all applicable fees, the Department reviews the proposed business premises location for compliance with Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) sections 104.03(a)(3) and LAMC 105 et seq. If the proposed location is found to be non-compliant or ineligible for the proposed cannabis business activity(ies), then the Department notifies the applicant who is then able to either modify their proposed cannabis business activities and submit a new Pre-Application Review request at the same location, or identify a new proposed business premises location and submit a new Pre-Application Review request. If the location is found to be compliant and eligible for licensure for the proposed cannabis business activity(ies), then the applicant is notified that their application status is eligible for further processing and they progress to the temporary licensing process.

The applicant is afforded up to one calendar year from the time they receive a status of "Eligible for Processing" to submit information, documents, and forms to begin the **Temporary Approval process**. The Temporary Approval process is outlined in the Department's <u>Temporary Approval Information and Procedure Bulletin (LIC-4003-IPB)</u> and <u>Temporary Approval Workflow (LIC-4003-WF)</u>.

After submitting all required information, documents, and forms, and paying all applicable fees, DCR officially deems the application received and proceeds to review it for completeness. If the application is not complete, then DCR requests any missing information from the applicant. The applicant is afforded 30 calendar days to provide the information, documents and/or forms otherwise the application is deemed abandoned. After all information is submitted, DCR will review the application to determine whether or not the application is complete. When DCR determines that the applicant has submitted a complete Temporary Approval Application, DCR will update the applicant's record status to "Local Compliance Underway" and this status will be communicated to the Department of Cannabis Control (DCC) upon request. After DCR reviews the application for completeness and the proposed business premises passes the initial inspection, the applicant is granted a temporary license (Temporary Approval). If the applicant is participating in the Social Equity Program, then Equity Share documents are reviewed for compliance with LAMC 104.20 before the temporary license is granted.

All applicants who are currently operating in Los Angeles have received Temporary Approval. Because of the state's dual authorization requirements, these applicants must also possess a Provisional License from the State.

The third and final permitting process is the local **Annual Application Process**, as illustrated in the City's <u>Annual Application Workflow (Draft)</u>. DCR has not begun to administer the local annual licensing application process as it is currently in the process of finalizing the process, documents and forms associated with it. The applicant will first be required to submit site specific environmental project information. At this point DCR will assess which

fees, if any, the applicant is responsible for paying. DCR expects to retain environmental consultants to provide the capacity and expertise necessary to review each application's project description and determine the appropriate environmental document that should be prepared to attain compliance with CEQA. After the CEQA document is completed or in parallel with that process, DCR will begin to review subsequent information, documents and forms submitted by the applicant to continue the local annual licensing process.

DCR will determine application completeness and which additional fees, if any, the applicant is responsible for paying. The process allows the applicant to respond to corrections issued by DCR and provide additional requested information. After DCR determines that the application is complete, it must provide notice within 10 days of the determination pursuant to LAMC 104.05(c)1. The notice of complete application starts a 90 day time period in which the Department may deny the issuance of the local annual license or make a recommendation to the Cannabis Regulation Commission (CRC) to issue the license pursuant to LAMC 1004.06(a). This process applies to storefront retailer commercial cannabis activity licenses and non-storefront commercial cannabis activity licenses where the business premises are 30,000 square feet or more. The Department will make the initial determination as to the issuance of a license for non-storefront commercial cannabis activity licenses where the business premises are less than 30,000 square feet. Both determinations are appealable and the decision to issue a license is not final and effective until a 15-day appeal period has passed or pending the outcome of the appeal.

Prior to scheduling the application for a CRC public hearing, DCR is required to hold a community meeting and conduct a final inspection of the business premises per <u>LAMC 104.04</u>. In addition, both the community meeting and the CRC public hearing require DCR to give a 20-day notice pursuant to <u>LAMC 104.05(c)2</u>.

2. Describe the applicable environmental review process relevant to the cannabis permits that you allow for in your jurisdiction.

As part of the local annual licensing process, applicants must provide a complete project description for site specific review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the State Planning and Zoning Law. When acting as the City's lead agency under CEQA, DCR staff and the Department's third-party environmental consultant will work with applicants to first ensure the proposed use(s) are consistent with the City's zoning and land use designations, and that the documentation submitted by the applicant or the applicant's consultant(s) is adequate for DCR's approval.

DCR envisions collaborating with a short list of previously approved environmental consulting firms and their subject matter experts to determine the scope of the applicant's project, the existing and former use(s) of a proposed site for purposes of determining the appropriate baseline from which to consider any potential effects, and the additional information needed to prepare the appropriate CEQA document in a timely and accurate manner. Many permit approvals will likely involve the preparation and consideration of notices of exemptions under CEQA, and evidence in support thereof. Other approvals may involve tiering from previously adopted environmental documents, if available and appropriate. If, however, a specific project requires a re-zone or conditional use permit, it is likely DCR will rely on the environmental document and analysis prepared by the City's Planning Department for purposes of DCR's subsequent permit approval.

DCR may also consider proposing amendments to the City zoning code to allow for ministerial permit approvals in the future, realizing such an effort would be long-term and likely require preparation of an environmental impact report (EIR).

- 3. Identify what requirements must be met by your permittee when providing the state with local authorization response for each of the following:
 - a. "In compliance"
 - b. "Compliance under way"
 - c. "Not in compliance"
 - a. In Compliance: The applicant has completed CEQA review and a determination has been filed with

the local county recorder and the local annual licensing process has been successfully completed. In addition, the decision is final and either was not appealed or if an appeal was filed, the appeal has been denied and the granting of the local annual license has been upheld by the appeal body.

b. Compliance Underway: The applicant has submitted an application for temporary approval and DCR has determined that the application is complete and was submitted within a year of receiving a status of "Eligible for Processing".

c. Not in Compliance: The applicant has:

1) not begun the temporary approval process and may still be in the pre-application review process; 2) not paid all applicable fees; 3) has not submitted a complete application for temporary approval; or 4) a location, entity legal name, or other application related information inconsistent with what is submitted to the state. In some cases, DCR may not have any records associated with the applicant in question.

Statement of Needs/Problem Statement

1. Describe the challenges in the local jurisdiction permitting process that impede the timely transition of your permittees' license from a provisional license to an annual license.

There are three major challenges in DCR's licensing process which impede the timely transition of provisional licensees to annual licensees. The first challenge involves the state's requirements to apply for an annual license. California Code of Regulations (CCR) §15002(c)((26) requires an application for an annual license to include evidence of exemption from, or compliance with, the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as required by CCR § 15010 - Compliance with CEQA. In order to comply with the requirements of CCR § 15010, a Notice of Determination or Notice of Exemption for the site specific project, must be completed and filed. At the local level, in the City of Los Angeles this notice is completed at the culmination of the local annual licensing process. Therefore, in order to provide provisional licensees with documentation necessary to apply for an annual license, they must complete the local annual licensing process.

The second challenge is that DCR currently lacks sufficient resources to administer the local annual licensing process. With existing resources, the City has supported DCR's administration of three of the four main licensing processes that DCR is responsible for administering, namely, the pre-application review process, the temporary approval process, and the application modification process. Currently, DCR has a total of nine licensing analysts and two supervisors managing nearly 1,200 existing temporary approval licenses and currently processing approximately 715 pending temporary approval applications.

Additionally, local law requires applicants to comply with certain permitting requirements of other City agencies' prior to obtaining a local annual license. The City's construction development approval and permitting process involves multiple agencies which can be very difficult to navigate without assistance. DCR currently lacks compliance staff whose primary responsibility would be to ensure that applicants are informed of compliance requirements and outstanding violations issued by other agencies that would preempt DCR's issuance of an annual license. Further, DCR also lacks staff whose primary responsibility would be to assist Social Equity Applicants understand and provide guidance on the City's complex permitting requirements in support of the Department's compliance function, such as an outreach coordinator and community liaison. Lastly, DCR's lack of licensing resources are compounded by its lack of administrative support staff which is critical to manage grants and contracts. Without additional positions dedicated to these functions, all of which are necessary to transition provisional licensees into annual licensees, existing licensing staff will have to divide their capacity between existing responsibilities and new responsibilities compromising the ability for the City's application processes to be administered effectively, efficiently, or expeditiously.

The City's local annual licensing process requires the applicant to submit a complete application, various notices throughout the process, payment of fees, a final inspection and may also include a community meeting and a public hearing held by the Cannabis Regulation Committee. DCR does not currently have the resources to administer these requirements. The expansion of departmental personnel is an acute necessity as all of the 1,091 businesses currently holding licenses in Los Angeles are operating under a local temporary license (Temporary Approval). Due to the DCC's sunsetting of provisional licenses by January 1, 2026, and recently established provisional license renewal requirements, each one of these licenses is now required to progress through the local annual licensing process which includes environmental review at approximately the same timeline that the state has afforded its provisional licensees to transition into an annual license.

The third challenge is a lack of environmental review and CEQA expertise within existing DCR personnel. DCR's core personnel is made up of analysts from entry level to mid management. This general civil service classification is not required to have any type of environmental knowledge, experience, or education. As such, DCR lacks the expertise to begin and complete the processes necessary to review and assess CEQA compliance for provisional licensees.

2. If you have an equity program, describe any additional challenges in implementing the equity program in your local jurisdiction and/or challenges faced by equity applicants in receiving local permits and annual state licenses.

The mission of the City of Los Angeles' Social Equity Program is "to promote equitable ownership and employment opportunities in the cannabis industry in order to decrease disparities in life outcomes for marginalized communities, and to address the disproportionate impacts of the War on Drugs in those communities."

In order to promote equitable ownership in the local cannabis industry, Social Equity Applicants need access to resources before, during and after receiving licenses at the local and state level.

Although the City of Los Angeles was one of the first jurisdictions in the nation to pass laws establishing programming dedicated to equity in cannabis licensing, the implementation of the City's Social Equity Program has been challenged by several factors. These factors include personnel shortages at DCR, delayed and limited program resources, continuous policy and regulatory changes at the state and local level, legal challenges and the program's large scale in terms of the number of participants and the goals and requirements of the program.

To participate in the City's Social Equity Program an applicant must first meet the program's individual eligibility requirements. After the applicant is verified as a Social Equity Applicant, DCR must verify that the entity applying for licensure meets the program's entity eligibility requirements.

Although the City's initial period for Social Equity Program individual eligibility verification was limited to a 60 day period in 2019, over 2,200 individuals applied and over 1,600 individuals met the requirements to participate in the City's SEP. This data reflects a high demand for participation in the City's legal cannabis market and Social Equity Program.

Based on the availability of resources, Social Equity Program participants may have access to the following:

Priority Application Processing

• Exclusive Application Processing for Retail, Delivery and Cultivation Licenses until January 1, 2025

Business, Licensing and Compliance Assistance

• Financial Assistance (via grants, fee waivers or deferrals)

Pro Bono Legal Services

Though Social Equity Applicants in the City of Los Angeles have certain application processing benefits afforded through the Social Equity Program, many Social Equity Applicants have experienced challenges progressing through the local application processes; these challenges

have been a result of several factors including, the City's temporary approval license application requirements (which prior to July 2021 amendments were overly burdensome and restrictive), and the inherent requirements associated with the local annual licensing process, limited DCR personnel to verify these requirements and various delays due to related administrative and legal challenges.

First, based on DCC's requirements and deadlines, Social Equity Applicants must complete the licensing requirements and processes necessary to transition a provisional licensee to annual licensure, which may pose new barriers that are a greater challenge than those associated with the City's existing application process and may have detrimental financial consequences. Specifically, existing Social Equity Applicants with provisional licenses may be in jeopardy of losing their ability to operate if they fail to complete these requirements within the deadlines established by the DCC. Furthermore, because prospective Social Equity Applicants will be unable to apply for provisional licenses after March 31, 2023, this challenge will be exacerbated if Social Equity Applicants are unable to progress through these new processes in a timely manner due to a lack of resources within DCR

to administer these requirements.

Second, due to limited licensing staff within DCR, a high volume of applications, and the aforementioned factors, many Social Equity Applicants have been unable to progress through various application processes in a timely manner. These delays have come at a high cost to Social Equity Applicants.

Third, similar to the City's Licensing Program, the City of Los Angeles' Social Equity Program was codified into law before it was resourced. The initial funding for the Social Equity Program was not made available until 2019, which was almost two years after the City adopted the Social Equity Program into law. Due to previously delayed and now, limited resources, many Social Equity Applicants in the City of Los Angeles have not had the opportunity to participate in many of the programs now available through the City's Social Equity Program. For example, today, the Business Licensing and Compliance Assistance (BLC) Program offers all Social Equity Applicants access to a suite of services designed to assist equity entrepreneurs with launching a successful commercial cannabis business. These services include live webinars on cannabis business operations and procedures and an exclusive online learning management system with educational content covering compliance, marketing and branding, insurance, payroll and other useful topics. The program also hosted a Job Fair and launched a Job Board to connect local equity workers with local equity businesses.

However, as funding for BLC was not made available until July 1, 2019, and because the Department was unable to finalize contracts necessary to implement BLC until January 2021 (after the City lifted its contracting freeze due to the City's fiscal emergency caused by COVID-19), most programming available today was not available to the over 150 Social Equity Applicants who now have Temporary Approval.

While DCR continues its development and implementation of licensing and social equity programming based on the City's laws and regulations, Social Equity Applicants have continued to share the impediments they experience in seeking to participate in the legal cannabis industry. Through a recent initiative, SPARK, intended to gather stakeholder feedback, DCR learned that the top 3 barriers to entry for Social Equity Applicants are the following: access to capital, access to approved real estate locations, and access to legal services. Furthermore, Social Equity Applicants also have expressed concerns regarding predatory practices that take advantage of these barriers to entry. In order to successfully launch their commercial cannabis businesses, Social Equity Applicants need adequate startup capital and a compliant location. Some investors and landlords exploit this vulnerable position, offering capital or real estate for grossly unfair terms. Without other options, Social Equity Applicants find themselves in situations that dilute their business ownership and ability to retain profits. These practices subvert the intention and requirements of the Social Equity Program.

With resources made available through the California Cannabis Equity Grant and the City's General Fund, DCR is now positioned to develop and expand resources that address the concerns of Social Equity Applicants and the barriers Social Equity Applicants experience when seeking to enter the legal cannabis industry. DCR seeks to continue to expand programming as additional resources are made available to address the barriers and concerns identified by Social Equity Applicants including transitioning provisional licenses into annual licenses by completing CEQA review and local annual licensing requirements.

Goals and Intended Outcomes

1. List the goals and intended outcomes of this funding opportunity.

Goals should explain how funding will be utilized to impact the issue areas stated in the problem statement. Outcomes should describe specific change(s) or result(s) when the goal is achieved.

At a minimum, the following should be addressed:

- How CEQA compliance will be achieved
- How obstacles will be removed from the permitting process, including opportunities to reduce time to permit issuance.
- How these goals will align with the statutory deadlines mandated for maintenance of a provisional license.

 Local coordination necessary to reach specific outcomes, if multiple departments, divisions, or offices are involved.

Goal: Retain CEQA Consultants and other annual licensing staff to carry out the local annual licensing process and waive certain application fees.

Action	Intended Outcome
Prepare an RFP to retain environmental consultants and/or staff on loan from other City Departments to assist in the coordination, preparation and completion of CEQA review.	 Allows provisional licensees to progress into the local annual licensing process to subsequently apply for the state's annual license. DCR will not invoice for certain services related to environmental review and local annual licensing that will be covered by state grant funds.

Goal: Retain staff and resources for coordination and communication with other City agencies. Remove obstacles that will impede the issuance of local and therefore state Annual Licensing by coordinating with local agencies to gain compliance with permitting requirements to streamline issuance of local Annual Licensing.

Action	Intended Outcome
Hire Compliance Staff.	 Coordinate with outside local agencies, Fire Department, Building and Safety, etc., which are involved in the permitting process of cannabis facilities, to assess any pending permitting requirements or outstanding violations which would preempt an applicant's eligibility for a local annual license. Work with ITA to establish technical coordination through DCR's Complaint Portal with outside agencies.
Hire Social Equity Program Outreach Coordinator & Community Liaison.	 Provide outreach and training related to permitting requirements. Applicants will be able to begin other City required permitting processes and be in good standing and eligible to go through the local annual licensing process. Provide targeted communication with applicants with specific deadlines for compliance.
dire Licensing Staff (for CEQA and local annual licensing).	 DCR will not invoice for certain services related to environmental review and local annual licensing that will be covered by state grant funds. DCR will not invoice for certain fees related to environmental review and local annual licensing that will be recovered from the state grant funds.

Goal: Establish CEQA Related Procedures and Assess Workload.

Action	Intended Outcome
Prior to March 31, 2022, create a CEQA	DCR will communicate with its Temporary
Project Information Form to begin	Approval licensees about the
collecting site specific project information	requirements, form(s) and deadlines
for environmental review. This action will	related to environmental review.
be performed by new Environmental	
Annual Licensing Analysts.	
On or before June 30, 2022, establish a	Provisional licensees will be able to
local procedure that provides Provisional	renew their Provisional Licenses.
Licensees with documentation to comply	
with renewal requirements pursuant to	
CCR §15001.2. This action will be	
performed by the new Environmental	
Annual Licensing Sr. Analyst. On July 1, 2022, identify existing	O- siel - with war in the
Provisional Licensees. Distribute	Social equity provisional licensees
workload amongst the four	will have a designated analyst to
new Environmental Annual Licensing	assist them through the CEQA
Analysts.	review and local annual licensing
Pularysts.	process.
	DCR will use grant funds to help transition these provisional
at .	transition these provisional
	licensees into the annual licensing
	process.

Goal: Provisional License Renewal. Ensure Provisional Licensees are eligible for renewal for the period of July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023. Ensure Provisional Licensees are eligible for renewal on and after July 1, 2023.

Action	Intended Outcome
From July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023, provide state required documentation to comply with renewal requirements pursuant to CCR §15001.2.	DCR will prepare documentation for provisional licensees as of July 1, 2022, who have provided DCR with the requested environmental site-specific information that demonstrates the provisional licensee has provided information, documents and forms necessary for the furtherance of environmental review by the lead agency.
From Sept. 1, 2022 - Nov. 30, 2022, renew eligible provisional licensees' Temporary Approval. This action will be performed by new Environmental Annual Licensing Analysts. On or after July 1, 2023, provide state required documentation to comply with renewal requirements pursuant to CCR §15001.2.	Provisional licensees are able to remain operational for calendar year 2023 by maintaining their Temporary Approval and will be eligible to proceed into the local annual licensing process. DCR will prepare documentation for remaining provisional licensees as of July 1, 2023, who have provided DCR with the requested environmental site-specific information that demonstrates the provisional licensee has provided information, documents and forms necessary for the

	furtherance of environmental review by the lead agency.
From Sept. 1, 2023 - Nov. 30, 2023, renew eligible provisional licensees' Temporary Approval. This action will be performed by new Environmental Annual Licensing Analysts.	Provisional licensees are able to remain operational for calendar year 2024 by maintaining their Temporary Approval and will be eligible to proceed into the local annual licensing process.
From Sept. 1, 2024 - Nov. 30, 2024, renew eligible provisional licensees' Temporary Approval. This action will be performed by new Environmental Annual Licensing Analysts.	Provisional licensees are able to remain operational for calendar year 2025 by maintaining their Temporary Approval and will be eligible to proceed into the local annual licensing process.

Goal: Complete CEQA Compliance. Provide documentation to the state that demonstrates compliance with CEQA is complete.

Action	Intended Outcome
Issue local Annual Licenses to Provisional Licensees.	CEQA compliance will be completed when the Cannabis Regulation Commission determines the project is categorically exempt from CEQA or adopts another type of environmental clearance or when the DCR issues an annual license.

Repeat the format above to list additional goals. Add additional rows to the chart as necessary.

- 2. For those jurisdictions that have been identified as eligible to receive additional funding due to the status of the local equity program, address the following in your goal(s):
 - a. How this funding, particularly the dollars provided due to local equity program status will:
 - i. Support local equity applicants in entering the regulated cannabis industry;
 - ii. Allow local equity applicants to receive cannabis permits and annual licenses more quickly; and
 - iii. Further support local and/improve equity program implementation.

In order to enter into the regulated cannabis industry, local equity applicants must complete licensing requirements at the state and local level. Based on recent changes to state law, Social Equity Applicants must apply for a provisional license on or before March 31, 2023.

To support local equity applicants in entering the City's legal industry, funds will be utilized to provide DCR resources that will assist provisional licensees complete locally-administered processes necessary to meet DCC's requirements for annual licensure. Specifically, funds will allow DCR to retain *new* personnel and consultants who will assist with CEQA review and the City's annual licensing requirements in order for provisional licensees to receive a DCC annual license. Lastly, the funding will also be used to partially fund *new* positions associated with administrative functions related to this grant and contract management. By utilizing funding in this way, the City can ensure Social Equity Applicants can enter the City's legal cannabis market by facilitating the local temporary licensing process in a timely manner. This will aid prospective Social Equity Applicants in their efforts to apply for provisional licenses by March 31, 2023. Further, this funding will ensure that Social Equity Applicants with provisional licenses are able to make a timely transition to annual licenses consistent with the deadlines established by the DCC.

Because the City of Los Angeles requires the Department's services to be full-cost recovery, DCR is required to charge fees for all licensing related services it provides to the public. Largely, due to economic

characteristics associated with the Social Equity Program's eligibility criteria, many Social Equity Applicants are not individually well positioned to pay licensing fees. Funding the services of *new* DCR personnel and consultants that would otherwise be funded by applicant fees, will enable Social Equity Applicants entry into the legal market by DCR waiving fees for services related to CEQA review and the City's annual licensing process. These fees may otherwise be a barrier to Social Equity Applicants with provisional licenses who are seeking to transition to annual licenses.

Further, with these resources DCR will be able to more expeditiously process applications from Social Equity Applicants in order for these applicants to receive local and state licenses. Without assistance from this funding, DCR would be required to utilize *existing* personnel to administer processes related to CEQA review, provisional licensing and renewal, and the City's annual licensing process. Using *existing* DCR staff in this manner would compromise DCR's ability to administer the City's Pre-Application Review, Temporary Approval and License Modification processes in a timely manner.

By providing resources for *new* positions to support the administration of processes that are necessary for a provisional licensee to meet requirements for an annual license, DCR can continue to utilize *existing* personnel to administer processes related to Pre-Application Review, Temporary Approval and License Modifications. In addition, DCR will be better positioned to meet the application processing timelines expected at the local level.

In addition, grant funding for *new* positions, will ensure that existing personnel are able to continue to process *new* applications from Social Equity Applicants which will allow *prospective_*Social Equity Applicants to continue to receive local Temporary Approval.

Furthermore, Social Equity Applicants will be able to continue to receive provisional licenses until July 1, 2023, and will continue to have a path to transition to DCC's annual licenses by completing processes related to CEQA review and local annual licensing processes with the aid of *newly* retained resources dedicated to the annual licensing process.

Lastly, funding provided through this grant would also support and improve the implementation of the City's Social Equity Program by allowing the Department to create a *new* position to be dedicated to outreach and engagement to Social Equity Applicants and to assist applicants through the processes necessary for provisional licensure to meet requirements for annual licensure. With *new* resources dedicated to the Social Equity Program, CEQA review, local annual licensing and related compliance, and administrative support related to this grant, DCR is better positioned to meet the objectives of this grant and administer its licensing program in a way that supports the goals of the Social Equity Program.

3. If your local jurisdiction has not adopted or is not operating a local equity program, please indicate whether the local jurisdiction is considering adopting a local equity program, including a potential timeline for this decision.

Not applicable, the City of Los Angeles adopted a Social Equity Program in December, 2017.

EXHIBIT B

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Approval

This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties. The Recipient may not invoice for activities performed prior to the commencement date or completed after the termination date of this Agreement.

2. Agreement Execution

Unless otherwise prohibited by state law, regulation, or Department or Recipient policy, the parties agree that an electronic copy of a signed Agreement, or an electronically signed Agreement, has the same force and legal effect as an Agreement executed with an original ink signature. The term "electronic copy of a signed Agreement" refers to a transmission by facsimile, electronic mail, or other electronic means of a copy of an original signed Agreement in a portable document format. The term "electronically signed Agreement" means an Agreement that is executed by applying an electronic signature using technology approved by all parties.

3. Assignment

This Agreement is not assignable by the Recipient, either in whole or in part, without the prior consent of the DCC Agreement Manager or designee in the form of a formal written amendment.

4. Governing Law

This Agreement is governed by and will be interpreted in accordance with all applicable State and Federal laws.

5. State and Federal Law

It is the responsibility of the Recipient to know and understand which State, Federal, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances are applicable to this Agreement and the Project, as described in Exhibit A. The Recipient shall be responsible for observing and complying with all applicable State and Federal laws and regulations. Failure to comply may constitute a material breach.

6. Recipient Commitments

The Recipient accepts and agrees to comply with all terms, provisions, conditions and commitments of the Agreement, including all incorporated documents, and to fulfill all assurances, declarations, representations, and statements made by the Recipient in the application, documents, amendments, and communications in support of its request for funding.

7. Performance and Assurances

The Recipient agrees to faithfully and expeditiously perform or cause to be performed all Project work as described in the Scope of Work, and to apply grant funds awarded in this Agreement only to allowable Project costs.

8. Mutual Liability

Parties shall, to the extent allowed by law, each be individually liable for any and all claims, losses, causes of action, judgments, damages, and expenses to the extent directly caused by their officers, agents, or employees.

9. Unenforceable Provision

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, the parties agree that all other provisions of this Agreement shall remain operative and binding.

10. Contractors/Consultants

The Recipient assumes full responsibility for its obligation to pay its Contractors/Consultants. The Recipient is responsible to ensure that any/all contractors/consultants it engages to carry out activities under this Agreement shall have the proper licenses/certificates required in their respective disciplines. The Recipient's use of contractors/consultants shall not affect the Recipient's responsibilities under this Agreement.

11. Non-Discrimination Clause

The Recipient agrees that during the performance of this Agreement, it will not discriminate, harass, or allow harassment or discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment based on race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, or military and veteran status. The Recipient agrees to require the same of all contractors and consultants retained to carry out the activities under this Agreement.

The Recipient agrees that during the performance of this Agreement, the evaluation and treatment of its employees and applicants for employment are free from discrimination and harassment. The Recipient will comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code section 12990 *et seq.*) and the applicable regulations promulgated there under (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, section 7285 *et seq.*). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. The Recipient will give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining unit or other Agreement. The Recipient must include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform work under this Agreement.

The Recipient agrees to require the same of all contractors and consultants retained to carry out activities under this Agreement.

12. Excise Tax

The State of California is exempt from federal excise taxes and no payment will be made for any taxes levied on employees' wages. The DCC will pay for any applicable State of California or local sales or use taxes on the services rendered or equipment or parts supplied pursuant to this Agreement. California may pay any applicable sales and use tax imposed by another State.

13. Disputes

The Recipient must continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. In the event of a dispute, the Recipient must file a "Notice of Dispute" with the DCC Agreement Manager, identified in Exhibit A, or designee within ten (10) calendar days of discovery of the problem. The Notice of Dispute must contain the Agreement number. Within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the Notice of Dispute, the DCC Agreement Manager or designee must meet with the Recipient for the purpose of resolving the dispute. In the event of a dispute, the language contained within this Agreement prevails.

14. Termination for Convenience

This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon written notice. Notice of termination must be delivered to the other party at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the intended date of termination. Notice of termination does not nullify obligations already incurred prior to the date of termination. In the event of Termination for Convenience of this Agreement by DCC, DCC must pay all responsible costs and non-cancellable obligations incurred by the Recipient as of the date of termination.

15. Termination for Cause

Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause in the event of a material breach of this Agreement, provided that the non-breaching party provides written notice of the material breach and ten (10) calendar days to cure the breach. If the breach is not cured to the satisfaction of the non-breaching party within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of notice, this Agreement shall automatically terminate and the DCC shall reimburse the Recipient for all documented costs incurred up to the date of the notice of termination, including all non-cancellable obligations.

16. Acceptable Failure to Perform

The Recipient shall not be liable for any failure to perform as required by this Agreement, to the extent such failure to perform is caused by any of the following: labor disturbances or disputes of any kind, accidents, or the inability to obtain any required government approval to proceed, civil disorders, acts of aggression, acts of God, energy or other conservation measures, failure of utilities, mechanical breakdowns, materials shortages, disease, pandemics, or similar occurrences.

17. Breach

Reimbursement under this Agreement may be suspended, terminated, or both, and the Recipient may be subject to debarment if DCC determines that the Recipient has breached the terms of this Agreement. A determination of breach may be appealed in writing to the DCC. The appeal must be post marked within ten (10) calendar days of the date the Recipient received notification and addressed to the DCC Legal Affairs Division or emailed to: legalaffairs@cannabis.ca.gov.

Department of Cannabis Control Legal Affairs Division 2920 Kilgore Road Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

18. Non-Material Breach

The Recipient may be in material breach under this Agreement if it fails to comply with any term of this Agreement. In the event of a material breach, DCC shall provide in writing a Notice of Breach to the Recipient within ten (10) calendar days upon discovery of breach. The Recipient shall have ten (10) calendar days from receipt of the notice to cure the breach. If the Recipient fails to cure the breach within the time prescribed by this Agreement, DCC may do any of the following:

- A. Suspend payments;
- B. Demand repayment of all funding;
- C. Terminate the Agreement; or
- D. Take any other action deemed necessary to recover costs.

If DCC determines that the Recipient is not in material breach but that the Project is not being implemented in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, or that the Recipient has failed in any other respect to comply with the provisions of this Agreement, and the Recipient has failed to remedy any such failure in a reasonable and timely manner, DCC may withhold all or any portion of the grant funding and take any other action that DCC deems necessary to protect its interests.

Where a portion of the grant funding has been disbursed to the Recipient and DCC notifies the Recipient of its decision not to release funds that have been withheld pursuant to paragraph 17, the portion that has been disbursed shall thereafter be repaid immediately. DCC may consider the Recipient's refusal to repay the requested disbursed amount a material breach.

If DCC notifies the Recipient of its decision to withhold the entire funding amount from the Recipient pursuant to this paragraph, this Agreement shall terminate upon receipt of such notice by the Recipient and DCC shall no longer be required to provide funds under this Agreement and the Agreement shall no longer be binding on either party.

In the event DCC finds it necessary to enforce this provision of this Agreement in the manner provided by law, the Recipient agrees to pay all enforcement costs incurred by DCC including, if DCC should prevail in a civil action, reasonable attorneys' fees, legal expenses, and costs related to the action.

19. Publicity and Acknowledgement

The Recipient agrees that it will acknowledge DCC's support whenever projects funded, in whole or in part, by this Agreement are publicized in any news media, brochures, publications, audiovisuals, presentations or other types of promotional material and in accordance with the SOW attached to this Agreement. The Recipients may not use the DCC logo.

20. News Releases/Public Conferences

The Recipient agrees to notify the DCC in writing at least two (2) business days before any news releases or public conferences are initiated by the Recipient or its Contractors/Consultants regarding the project described in the Attachments, Scope of Work and Budget and any project results.

21. Scope of Work and Budget Changes

Changes to the Scope of Work, Budget, or the Project term, must be requested in writing to DCC Grant Administrative Contact no less than thirty (30) days prior to the requested implementation date. Any changes to the Scope of Work and Budget are subject to DCC approval and, at its discretion, DCC may choose to accept or deny any changes. If accepted and after negotiations are concluded, the agreed upon changes will be made and become part of this Agreement. DCC will respond in writing within ten (10) business days as to whether the proposed changes are accepted.

22. Reporting Requirements

The Recipient agrees to comply with all reporting requirements specified in Scope of Work incorporated by reference to this Agreement as an attachment.

23. California State Auditor

This Agreement is subject to examination and audit by the California State Auditor for a period of three (3) years after final payment under the Agreement.

24. Equipment

Purchase of equipment not included in the approved Budget requires prior approval. The Recipient must comply with applicable state requirements regarding the use, maintenance, disposition, and reporting of equipment.

25. Closeout

The Agreement will be closed out after the completion of the Project or project term, receipt and approval of the final invoice and final report, and resolution of any performance or compliance issues.

26. Confidential and Public Records

The Recipient and DCC understand that each party may come into possession of information and/or data which may be deemed confidential or proprietary by the person or organization furnishing the information or data. Such information or data may be subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act or the Public Contract Code. DCC had the sole authority to determine whether the information is releasable. Each party agrees to maintain such information as confidential and notify the other party of any requests for release of information.

27. Amendments

Changes to funding amount or Agreement term require an amendment and must be requested in writing to the DCC Agreement Manager or designee no later than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the requested implementation date. Amendments are subject to DCC approval, and, at its discretion, may choose to accept or deny these changes. No amendments are possible if the Agreement is expired.

EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT AND BUDGET PROVISIONS

1. Invoicing and Payment

- A. For activities satisfactorily rendered and performed according to the attached Scope of Work and Budget, and upon receipt and approval of the invoices, DCC agrees to reimburse the Recipient for actual allowable expenditures incurred in accordance with the rates specified herein, which is attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement.
- B. Invoices must include the Agreement Number, performance period, type of activities performed in accordance with this Agreement, and when applicable, a breakdown of the costs of parts and materials, labor charges, and any other relevant information required to ensure proper invoices are submitted for payment.
- C. Unless stated in the Scope of Work, quarterly invoices must be submitted to the DCC Administrative Contact, within thirty (30) calendar days after the end of each quarter in which activities under this Agreement were performed.
- D. Unless stated in the Scope of Work, a final invoice will be submitted for payment no more than thirty (30) calendar days following the expiration date of this Agreement, or after project is complete, whichever comes first. The final invoice must be clearly marked "Final Invoice" thus indicating that all payment obligations of the DCC under this Agreement have ceased and that no further payments are due or outstanding.

2. Allowable Expenses and Fiscal Documentation

- A. The Recipient must maintain adequate documentation for expenditures of this Agreement to permit the determination of the allowability of expenditures reimbursed by DCC under this Agreement. If DCC cannot determine if expenditures are allowable under the terms of this Agreement because records are nonexistent or inadequate according to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, DCC may disallow the expenditures.
- B. If mileage is a reimbursable expense, using a privately-owned vehicle will be at the standard mileage rate established by the United States (U.S.) Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and in effect at the time of travel. The standard mileage rate in effect at the time of travel can be found on IRS's website regardless of funding source/type.
- C. If domestic travel is a reimbursable expense, receipts must be maintained to support the claimed expenditures. The maximum rates allowable for travel within California are those established by the California Department of Human Resources (CalHR). The maximum rates allowable for domestic travel outside of California are those established by the United States General Services Administration (GSA).
 - If domestic travel is a reimbursable expense, receipts must be maintained to support the claimed expenditures. The maximum rates allowable are those established by the Federal Travel Regulation, issued by General Services Administration (GSA), including the maximum per diem and subsistence rates prescribed in those regulations.
- D. If foreign travel is a reimbursable expense, receipts must be maintained to support the claimed expenditures. The maximum rates allowable are those established in a per diem supplement to Section 925, Department of State Standardized Regulations.

E. The Recipient will maintain and have available, upon request by DCC, all financial records and documentation pertaining to this Agreement. These records and documentation will be kept for three (3) years after completion of the Agreement period or until final resolution of any performance/compliance review concerns or litigation claims.

3. Prompt Payment Clause

Payment will be made in accordance with, and within the time specified in, California Government Code Title 1, Division 3.6, Part 3, Chapter 4.5, commencing with Section 927 - The California Prompt Payment Act.

4. Budget Contingency Clause

If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted for purposes of this program, the DCC has the option to either cancel this Agreement with no liability occurring to the DCC or offer to amend the Agreement to reflect the reduced amount.

EXHIBIT C1 Budget Worksheet

Jurisdictio	n Name			City	OI LOS ANGGIES DEPON	ment of Cannable Reg	Participated	22,312,36	0.00	
Total Gran	nt Amount	L						22,312,36	9.00	
1000	H915	A D	ire	et Technica	Assistance Costs	- Personnel	10 T 10 TO	1 1 1 1	Service of	
Persons	nel that will provide di	rect technical assistance to support the inte	ent c	of the grant pro			for time spent working	g on the grant by the		
Personnel Classification		n Role in Grant Program		Benefits		FY 22-23 Percentage of Time	FY 23-24 Percentage of Time	FY 24-25 Percentage of Time	TOTAL	
Example	Local Planner	Reviews CEGA documentation provided by applicants	8	150,000.00	0.50	0.75	1.00	1.00	\$ 407,50	
A1	Sr. Management Analyst I	Supervisor	S	598,834.00	0.10	1.00	1.00	0.80	\$ 1,730,81	
A2	Management Analyst	Env. Annual Licensing Analyst	\$	548,355.00	0.10	1.00	1.00	0,80	8 1,500,22	
A3	Management Analyst	Env. Annual Licensing Analyst	5	548,355.00	0.10	1.00	1.00	0.80	\$ 1,590,22	
A4	Management Analyst	Env. Annual Licensing Analyst	\$	548,355.00	0.10	1.00	1.00	08.0	\$ 1,590,22	
A5	Management Analyst	Env. Annual Licensing Analyst	\$	548,355.00	0.10	1.00	1.00	0.80	\$ 1,590,22	
A6	Administrative Clerk	Administrative Support	\$	212,022.00	0.10	1.00	1.00	0.50	\$ 551,21	
A7									\$	
A8									\$	
A9									\$	
A10									S	
A11									\$	
A12							irect Technical Assista		\$	

		Herna theil provide	do direct bases and	to the intent of the proxi	ргодгама.			Col Col Col Col
	et Category / or Vendor (If known)	Description	Annual Cost	FY 21-22 Percentage of Costs	FY 22-23 Porcentage of Costs	Perconlege of Costs	PV 24-25 Perasatage of Costs	TOTAL
Example	Contractual/ Environment Consultants	Contractor so assist with the development of a PEIR for the county.	\$ 500,000.00	1.00	0.50	4.50	0.50	\$ 1,250,000 00
B1	Environmental Consultants	Contractor to assist with updates to the original PEIR study for the City.	\$ 1,000,000.00	0.50	0.76	0.26	0.0C	\$ 1,500,000.00
B2	Environmental Consultanta	Contract to review, process, and final environmental analysis for Licensees	\$ 3,660,800.00	0.50	1.00	1.00	0.00	\$ 9,152,000.00
B3								\$ -
B4								
B5								\$ -
B6								\$ -
B7								\$.

	To provide or fund at	iministrative assistance to support the inte	nt e	f the grant pro	gram.	COST OF SA	ary a	DC WI	iges for sine spen	R SUIP	porang the work	or the grant.	1	
Perso	nnel Classification	Role in Grant Program		nual Salary & Bonefite		FY 21-22 intage of 1			FY 22-23 centage of Time		FY 23-24 centage of Time	FY 24-26 Percentage of Time	L	TOTAL
Example	Accounting Analyst	To track expeditures associated with the grant.	8	89,000.00		0.25			0.25		0.25	0.25	\$	111,000.00
C1	Sr. Management Analyst I	Supervisor: budget, accounting, grants and contract administration	5	596,834.00	\$		0.10	\$	0.25	S	0.25	0.2	\$	477,467.20
C2	Management Analyst	Track expenditures associated with the grant	\$	548,355.00	\$		0.10		0.25	\$	0.25	0.2	8	438,684.00
C3	Management Analyst	To review compliance with yendor contracts,	\$	548,355.00	\$		0.10	\$	0.25	\$	0.25	0.2	\$	438,684.00
C4	Sr. Management Analyst	Supervisor: Compliance & Coordination	\$	596,834.00	\$		0.10	\$	0.25	S	0.25	0.2	\$	477,467.20
C5	Management Analyst	Compliance and Coordination	\$	548,355.00	\$		0.10	\$	0.25	\$	0.25	0.2	\$	438,684.00
C6	Sr. Management Analyst	Supervisor: Social Equity Program Outreach Coordinator & Community Liaison	\$	596,834.00	\$		0.10	S	0.25	\$	0.25	0.2	\$	477,467.20
C7	Public Relations Specialist	Social Equity Program Outreach Coordinator & Community Liaison	\$	314,197.79	\$		0.10	\$	0.25	\$	0.25	0.25	8	267,068.12
C8													\$	
C9			1										\$	
C10													\$	•
C11													\$	
C12							7						\$	

TOTAL	1	FY 24-26	FY 23-24	FY 22-23	strative or indirect support to the intent of the grant program FY 21-22 FY 22-23 Annual Cost Percentage of Costs Percentage of Co		Cost Category /		
81.25	3	Percentage of Costs	Percentage of Costs 0.02	0.02	0.02	1,250,000 00	Costs associated with office space for direct technical assistance staff.	Facilities / Headquarters	EX
1.84	1.	0.25	9.25	0.26	0.25	\$ 1,844.48	Ancillary Office Supplies		D1
7,84	1 3	0.28							D2
5	1.5								D3
<u> </u>	1 8								D4
\$	\$				-		1		D5
3	8								D6
l I	8								D7
1	3					1			
1,84	8	istance Costs - Other	Direct Technical Asa						

E. TOTALS	EN HORES A CONTRACTOR	
	Direct Technical Assistance Costs - TOTAL	519.224.553.40
	Indirect/Administrative Costs - TOTAL	\$ 3,917,366.20

EXHIBIT D

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

This California Local Jurisdiction Assistance Grant Program Agreement ("Agreement") is by and between [local jurisdiction] ("Grantee"), and the Department of Cannabis Control ("Department"), hereinafter jointly referred to as the "Parties" or individually as the "Party." Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, all definitions, rules, guidelines, and requirements specified in the California Local Jurisdiction Assistance Grant Program Guidelines (Grant Guidelines) issued on [date], shall apply to this Agreement. The identification number for this Agreement is [Agreement#].

In consideration of the mutual convents and promises in this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows:

- Authority. This Agreement is authorized and entered into pursuant to the Budget Act of 2021, Item 1115-101-0001 – For local assistance. The Local Jurisdiction Assistance Grant Funding allows for direct assistance to local jurisdictions' commercial cannabis programs to transition provisional licenses to annual licenses.
- 2. Grant Term. The performance period of this Agreement shall be from the specified date of the Grant Funding Expenditure Period through March 31, 2025 ("Grant Term"). Grant funds shall be expended only during the Grant Term.
- 3. Grant Award. Based on the Department's review of the Grantee's application and Annual Plan, which constitutes the Scope of Work for this Agreement and is incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A, and pursuant to the Grant Guidelines, and conditioned upon the requirements set forth in this Agreement, the Department shall provide Grantee a grant award amount as specified in the Grant Award Notification for the term of this Agreement. The Grant Award and Grant funding is to be used for the purposes specified in the Grant Guidelines, and pursuant to the Scope of Work. In no event shall the Department be obligated to pay any amount in excess of the awarded amount. Grantee waives any and all claims against the Department and the State of California for any costs that exceed the grant award amount identified in the Grant Award Notification.
- 4. Unused Grant Funds. Any amount of grant funds provided for under this Agreement that is not expended by the end of the Grant Term, or at the termination of this Agreement, whichever is sooner, shall be returned to the Department. Grantee shall notify Department of such unused funds and Department shall provide Grantee with instructions as to how to return the funds.
- 5. Funding Contingency Clause. The funding for this Agreement is allocated pursuant to the Local Jurisdiction Assistance Grant Funding. Grantee agrees that the Department's obligation to pay any sum under this Agreement is contingent upon availability of funds disbursed from the Local Jurisdiction Assistance Grant Funding. If there is insufficient funding, the Department shall have the option to either: 1) terminate this Agreement, whereby no party shall have any further obligations or liabilities under this Agreement, or 2) negotiate an Agreement amendment with Grantee to reduce the grant award and scope of work to be provided under this Agreement.
- **6. Grant Fund Disbursement.** Grant funds awarded pursuant to the Local Jurisdiction Assistance Grant Funding will be issued directly to Grantee in one disbursement, upon execution of this Agreement, and passing of a resolution or similar approving authority by the local jurisdiction.

- 7. Subcontractors. No amount of the grant award may be used to subcontract any of the commitments contemplated in this Agreement to another entity or person, unless with the written approval of the Department pursuant to section 13 of this Agreement or if the subcontract work is included the Grantee's Annual Plan and Application Budget Form that was submitted and approved by the Department.
- 8. Documentation and Reporting Requirements. Grantee must be able to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Department that the grant funds were expended for eligible uses and consistent with the activities identified in its application, and under the Grant Program. Grantee must provide progress and annual reports as specified in the Grant Guidelines. Grantee must maintain records detailing the expenditure of all grant funds for a period of seven (7) years after the end of the Grant Term and shall provide this information to the Department upon request.
- 9. Audit. Grantee agrees that the Department, the California State Auditor, or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. The books, accounts, files, receipts, and other records of Grantee which are applicable to this Agreement shall be made available for inspection, review, and audit immediately upon request by the Department and its representatives to verify proper use of the grant award, in accordance with the Grant Guidelines. Grantee agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records and to allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Grantee agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Agreement.
- 10. Eligible Uses. Grant funds shall be used for the purpose of assisting local applicants and local licensees in that local jurisdiction to transition from provisional licenses to annual license, and to successfully operate in, the state's regulated cannabis marketplace and consistent with the Grant Guidelines and the Grantee's application for Local Jurisdiction Assistance Grant Funding. As determined by the Department, upon its review, Grantee shall reimburse the Department for any ineligible or improper uses of grant funds.
- 11. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated by the Department upon action, or inaction by the Grantee that constitutes a material breach of this Agreement. A material breach includes, but is not limited to, refusal or inability to complete the commitments contemplated in this Agreement or the Grant Guidelines, improper expenditure of grant funds, failure to properly maintain records or allow the Department access to records as required under this Agreement or the Grant Guidelines, and failure to timely complete and submit the reports required under this Agreement or the Grant Guidelines. The Department will notify Grantee in writing if it intends to terminate the Agreement pursuant to this section and provide Grantee an opportunity to cure the breach within thirty (30) calendar days.
- **12.Assignment.** This Agreement is not assignable by Grantee, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the Department in the form of a written amendment.
- 13. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended or modified only in writing signed by all parties.

- 14. Grantee Representations and Warranties. Grantee represents and warrants that:
 - a. Grantee is an eligible applicant as set forth in the Grant Guidelines;
 - b. It is not a party to any agreement, written or oral, creating obligations that would prevent it from entering into this Agreement or satisfying the terms herein;
 - c. All of the information in its grant application and all materials submitted to the Department are true and accurate:
 - d. Grantee's governing body has authorized the Grantee to enter into this Agreement and has designated by title the individual authorized to sign the Agreement on behalf of Grantee;
- **15.Nondiscrimination.** Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and statutes related to nondiscrimination, including, but not limited to, race, color, national origin, gender, handicap or disability, sexual preference, drug addiction, and alcoholism.
- **16.Union Activities.** Grantee acknowledges that Government Code Section 16645.2 applies to this Agreement. Pursuant to Government Code Section 16645.2, Grantee certifies that none of the grant award will be used to assist, promote, or deter union organizing. If Grantee makes expenditures to assist, promote, or deter union organizing, it shall maintain records sufficient to show that no portion of the grant award was used for those expenditures. Grantee shall provide those records to the Attorney General upon request.
- 17. Media Release. Grantee may elect to issue a press release related to this Agreement, but any release shall be approved by the Department in writing prior to such release. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- 18.Indemnification/Warranty and Disclaimer/Limitation of Liability. Grantee shall defend, indemnify, and hold the Department and its agents or assigns, harmless from and against all claims, damages, and liabilities (including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising from this Agreement due to the Grantee's breach of this Agreement, or the result of the Grantee's negligence or willful misconduct. Under no circumstances will the State of California, the Department, its agents, or employees, be liable to the grantee for any direct, indirect, incidental, special, or consequential damages that arise from this agreement.
- 19.Force Majeure. If by reason of force majeure Grantee's performance hereunder is delayed or prevented, then the performance by Grantee may be extended for the amount of time of such delay or prevention. The term "force majeure" shall mean any fire, flood, earthquake, or public disaster, strike, labor dispute or unrest, embargo, riot, war, insurrection or civil unrest, any act of God, any act of legally constituted authority, or any other cause beyond the Grantee's control which would excuse Grantee's performance as a matter of law.
- 20. Notice of Force Majeure. Grantee agrees to provide the Department written notice of an event of force majeure under this Agreement within ten (10) days of the commencement of such event and within ten (10) days after the termination of such event, unless the force majeure prohibits Grantee from reasonably giving notice within this period. Grantee will give such notice at the earliest possible time following the event of force majeure.
- 21.Integration. This Agreement (including the exhibits hereto and any documents explicitly incorporated by reference, and any written amendments hereof executed by the Parties) constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties related to this grant award and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, oral and written, between the Parties with respect to the grant

award described herein.

- 22. Notice. Within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of this Agreement, Grantee shall notify the Department, in writing, of the name, address, phone number, and email of its contact person for future communication relating to this Agreement. In addition, Grantee agrees to immediately inform the Department of any changes to the name, address, phone number, and email of its contact person. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement to the Department shall be emailed to grants@cannabis.ca.gov.
- 23. Ambiguities. Each Party has had the opportunity to seek the advice of counsel or has refused to seek the advice of counsel. Each Party and its counsel, if appropriate, have participated fully in the negotiation, drafting, review, and revision of this Agreement. Any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party shall not apply in interpreting this Agreement. The language in this Agreement shall be interpreted as to its fair meaning and not strictly for or against any Party.
- 24. Necessary Acts, Further Assurances. The Parties shall at their own cost and expense execute and deliver any further documents and shall take such other actions as may be reasonably required or appropriate to carry out the intent and purposes of this Agreement.
- 25. Sections and Other Headings. The section and other headings contained in the Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
- 26.Representation on Authority of Parties/Signatories. Each person signing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute and deliver this Agreement. Each Party represents and warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of such Party's obligations hereunder have been duly authorized, and that this Agreement is a valid and legal agreement binding on such Party and enforceable in accordance with its terms.
- **27.Severability.** If any portion of this Agreement is to any extent invalid, illegal, or incapable of being enforced, such portion shall be excluded to the extent of such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability; all other terms hereof shall remain in full force and effect.
- 28. Governing Law and Consent to Jurisdiction. The Agreement will be governed, construed, and enforced according to the laws of the State of California without regard to its conflict of laws rules. Each party hereby irrevocably consents to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of any state court located within Sacramento County, State of California in connection with any matter arising out of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated under this Agreement.

MOTION

When the COVID-19 pandemic began, the city had to curtail congregate meals to the elderly in neighborhood senior centers. To address this loss of life-saving nutrition services, the city engaged a unique partnership with restaurants, taxicab companies and elder care organizations to prepare and deliver hot meals to seniors in need. The innovative program was a lifeline for seniors in need, and also for the local restaurant and taxi businesses that were so devastated by the pandemic.

One of the taxicab operators that delivered these senior meals is still owed nearly \$60,000 for services it rendered in this program. Both the Department of Aging and the Office of Finance authorized the Controller to issue that payment, and a check was issued. However, the check was sent to the wrong address and apparently was illegally cashed by someone to whom it was not issued.

The city does not dispute that the amount is owed and does not dispute that the contractor never received the payment to which it is entitled, and acknowledges that the check was misdirected. Nonetheless, despite the error, the Controller has failed to reissue the payment to the contractor for the work that it performed on behalf of the city.

The city's bank is conducting an investigation to identify who stole the funds from the original check and recover them. In the meantime, a city contractor that acted in good faith and performed services at the city's request should not have to wait months to receive payment because of the city's own error in misdirecting the check.

Local businesses consistently express frustration with bureaucratic hurdles that make it difficult to work with the city. Delays in payment by the city can be devastating, especially for small businesses, when the contractor has paid out-of-pocket for its own costs in performing services for the city. Such delays damage the city's reputation as a business partner and result in fewer local businesses being willing to accept city contracts, causing less competition, higher costs to taxpayers, and less opportunity to create local jobs and revenues through procurement.

I THEREFORE MOVE that the Council REQUEST that the City Controller immediately reissue a check for the already approved outstanding invoice to LA City Cab, LLC for services that it delivered to seniors during the pandemic.

I FURTHER MOVE that the Council INSTRUCT the Office of Finance and the Office of the City Controller, in consultation with the City Attorney, to develop and adopt city policies covering misdirected or misappropriated payments to ensure that the city makes timely payments to vendors while still preserving all of its rights and working to recover lost funds, and to report on those policies to the Council within 60 days.

I FURTHER MOVE that the Council instruct the Office of Finance and the Controller to report to the Council within 60 days on steps that those offices can take to reduce the risk of such misdirected or misappropriated payments, and to reduce delays in payment to vendors, including but not limited to increased use of electronic funds transfers instead of paper checks.

Presented by: Paul Reforman

PAUL KREKORIAN Councilmember, 2nd District

Councilmember, 2nd District

Seconded by: _____

BUDGET & FINANCE

MOTION

The Fourteenth Council District (CD14) has received a request from the City of Ensenada to donate four (4) Combo Hydrojetter/Catch Basin Cleaner vehicles and two (2) dump trucks. On September 21, 2020, a delegation from the City of Ensenada, headed by Mayor Armando Ayala Robles, made an official visit to our City and expressed interest in our decommissioned vehicles. The City of Ensenada is located in Baja California, Mexico and is currently experiencing an emergency in light of the global pandemic.

Section 22.547 of the Los Angeles Administrative Code (LAAC) provides that upon Council approval, surplus City equipment may be sold for less than market value to a domestic or foreign government. The maintenance and disposal of the surplus equipment would also represent a net financial loss to the City of Los Angeles. The donation of four (4) Combo Hydrojetter/Catch Basin Cleaner vehicles and two (2) dump trucks will be used to provide services such as critical environmental services and public works projects within the City of Ensenada. The fair market value of the equipment is \$296,733.50, which will be forgone revenue should it be donated. Identifying information for the surplus equipment is provided below.

	MUNICIPALITY	UNIT#	DESCRIPTION	YEAR	MAKE	MODEL	LICENSE #	VIN#
			LA SANITATION AND ENV	IRONM	ENT (LASA	N)		
1	Ensenada	39758	Combo Hydrojetter/ Catch Basin Cleaner, Diesel	2007	Sterling	Vactor 2100	1242917	2FZHATDC87AY17983
2	Ensenada	39759	Combo Hydrojetter/ Catch Basin Cleaner, Diesel	2007	Sterling	Vactor 2100	1242916	2FZHATDCX7AY17984
3	Ensenada	39760	Combo Hydrojetter/ Catch Basin Cleaner, Diesel	2007	Sterling	Vactor 2100	1242918	2FZHATDC17AY17995
4	Ensenada	39761	Combo Hydrojetter/ Catch Basin Cleaner, Diesel	2007	Sterling	Vactor 2100	1242908	2FZHATDC37AY17986
			BUREAU OF STREET SEF	RVICES (S	StreetsLA)			
1	Ensenada	23741	Dump Truck, Natural Gas	2001	Chevy	C7500	1065634	1GBM7H1E61J509998
2	Ensenada	23889	Dump Truck, Diesel	2003	Mack	CV713	1154857	1M2AG10C13M003787

I THEREFORE MOVE that the City Council find that the City of Ensenada is eligible to purchase four (4) Combo Hydrojetter/Catch Basin Cleaner vehicles and two (2) dump trucks, as listed above, at below market value (\$1.00), in accordance with LAAC Sec. 22.547 (Donation of Surplus City Equipment), as the recipient is a foreign government that is responding to an emergency, including, but not limited to, recovery or reconstruction efforts following a natural or manmade disaster; and

I FURTHER MOVE that the City Attorney be requested to prepare a contract to effectuate the sale and transfer of the surplus equipment identified above at below market value to the City of Ensenada; and

I FURTHER MOVE that the City Clerk be instructed to inform the City of Ensenada, Mexico [Efrain Kantel Sanchez, Director of International Affairs, XXIII Ayuntamiento de Ensenada, Carretera Transpeninsular, 6500 A, Ex Ejido Chapultepec, (646) 172-3401] that the surplus equipment must be claimed within 90 days from the date of Council approval of the request or from the notification of equipment availability, whichever occurs later, after which time it will revert to the City's surplus equipment pool for disposal by the Department of General Services.

PRESENTED BY:

KEVIN DE LEÓN

Councilmember, 14th District

SECONDED BY: BIZ Blumay Sold

JAN 0 7 2022

abg

PUBLIC SAFETY

MOTION

On December 23, 2021, the Los Angeles Police Department responded to 911 calls for service at a Burlington store in North Hollywood. The calls ranged from requests to calm a violent unruly customer to reports that there was an active shooter on the scene.

As has been documented by the released video footage of the police response, officers arrived to find a man having just assaulted a Burlington customer with a bike lock. Upon discovering the victim on the ground covered in blood and the suspect, Daniel Elena-Lopez, one of the officers opened fire on the suspect. The suspect was struck and died of his injuries. Tragically, at least one round passed through a wall to a dressing room, striking and killing 14-year-old Valentina Orellana-Peralta.

The tragedy of this incident cannot be overstated. The investigation into the shooting continues, and the Council, along with the Police Commission and the Chief of Police, must do everything within its power to ensure that the City responds appropriately to that investigation.

The circumstances of this shooting serve as a reminder that when a person calls 911 to report violence, the police are prepared to respond with force to counter that violence. All of society is grappling with the question of how and when force should be used in particular circumstances. The City has already begun to pursue an alternative means of emergency response that has a "force-as-a-last-resort" approach to volatile encounters with members of the public, and significant policy discussions are continuing about how best to address violent crime and to reduce risks associated with police use of force.

As the city grieves over this horrendous tragedy, it is imperative that the Council and the public learn all of the facts about this incident and how the deaths at the Burlington store could have been avoided.

I THEREFORE MOVE that the Council INSTRUCT the Los Angeles Police Department to release to the public any unreleased body camera footage, 911 calls, radio transmissions and other recordings relating to the December 23, 2021 incident, unedited, immediately.

I FURTHER MOVE that the Council INSTRUCT the Los Angeles Police Department to report on the status of (i) the internal investigation of the December 23 incident, including the anticipated time frame for each step in the process, and (ii) the LAPD's cooperation with the investigation of the incident by the California Attorney General's office and any other investigative agencies.

I FURTHER MOVE that the Council INSTRUCT the Los Angeles Police Department to report to the Council on the following:

- 1) How a report of an active shooter is verified, and how appropriate tactics are decided upon when such a report is received;
- 2) The LAPD's policies and practices for pursuing a suspect believed to be an active shooter or otherwise violent in a contained area where victims and bystanders are or may be present;
- 3) The LAPD's policies and practices for protecting victims and bystanders from a suspect believed to be an active shooter or otherwise violent;
- 4) The LAPD's policies and practices for reducing the risk to victims and bystanders from an officer's discharge of weapons;
- 5) The LAPD's policies and practices for the use of rifles in a short-range encounter with a violent person when victims or bystanders may be present, and when less-lethal alternatives may be more appropriate; and
- 6) Any changes that have been made in the LAPD's policies and practices in the areas discussed above, or in the training related to those policies and practices, as a result of previous use of firearms in situations where victims or bystanders were at risk of being hit.

I FURTHER MOVE that the Council INSTRUCT the Chief Legislative Analyst to compile a report on the best practices utilized by other large police departments for reducing the use of lethal force, and for protecting victims and bystanders from risk when such force is used.

Presented by:

PAUL KREKORIAN

Councilmember, 2nd District

omia Kodnizues

KEVIN DE LEÓN

Tein w Kin

Councilmember, 14th District

MONICA RODRIGUEZ

Councilwoman, 7th District

Seconded by:

CURREN D. PRICE, JR.

Councilmember, 9th District

PUBLIC SAFETY

MOTION

On the evening of December 13, 2021 a long-vacant property at 2118 Sylvan Street in North Hollywood (part of the old Valley Plaza shopping center), caught fire. Over 100 Los Angeles Fire Department firefighters were required to respond to that fire, at significant risk to their own lives and at great expense to the City. After they courageously extinguished the fire, the remaining unsafe structure was demolished by the LAFD, at significant further expense to the City.

The property, and others in Valley Plaza under common ownership, have been vacant and in a state of disrepair for many years. At this location, and at countless similar locations throughout the city, vacant buildings create a blight on surrounding neighborhoods. Particularly when they have not been secured and are vulnerable to entry by squatters and other trespassers, these vacant structures also put nearby buildings at increased risk of fire.

I THEREFORE MOVE that the Council INSTRUCT the City Attorney, in consultation with the Department of Building and Safety and the Fire Department, to prepare an ordinance requiring property owners to install and maintain fire life safety equipment and enhanced security measures at any structure that remains vacant for more than 180 days.

I FURTHER MOVE that the Council INSTRUCT the Chief Legislative Analyst to report, in concert with the Department of Building and Safety and the Fire Department, on a proactive vacant structure inspection program that will ensure that vacant structures throughout the city are held to the standards contemplated in the aforementioned ordinance.

I FURTHER MOVE that the Council REQUEST the City Attorney to evaluate and pursue all remedies that may be available to the City (i) to recoup costs associated with the December 13, 2021 fire at 2118 Sylvan Street from the property owner, and (ii) to ensure that the property owner maintains the property and surrounding parcels under its ownership in a manner that eliminates blight and preserves public safety.

Presented by:

PAUL KREKORIAN

Councilmember, 2nd District

Seconded by: 2

WHEREAS, any official position of the City of Los Angeles with respect to legislation, rules, regulations, or policies proposed to or pending before a local, state, or federal governmental body or agency must have first been adopted in the form of a Resolution by the City Council with the concurrence of the Mayor; and

WHEREAS, for decades, mass shootings and gun homicides committed across the country have resulted in severe loss of life, disproportionately in low income and communities of color, and remain a constant reminder of the importance of firearm regulation; and

WHEREAS, this trend has worsened since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, with a 46 percent increase in gun homicides in 2020 and January 2021 being the deadliest month for gun homicides since 2007; and

WHEREAS, the disturbingly inability on the part of the federal government to provide effective firearm regulation has left the regulation of firearms as the responsibility of state governments; and

WHEREAS, California has some of the most comprehensive firearm regulation laws in the nation, however the recent ideological shift in the Supreme Court has left many of these regulations vulnerable to judicial challenges; and

WHEREAS, currently pending before the California State Legislature is AB 1594 (Ting) which would consider failure to comply with federal, state, or local law a public nuisance for members of the gun industry, holding them liable for any injury or death resulting from such failure to comply with applicable laws; and

WHEREAS, although the exact provisions of the bill are still to be determined, the matter will be considered in the current legislative session of the State Legislature; and

WHEREAS, Los Angeles has seen an alarming increase in the rate of violent crime, consequently rigorous regulation of local and state law relating to firearms, including background checks and prohibitions on ghost guns, must be a part of the solution; and

WHEREAS, the bill would hold the firearm industry liable for injury resulting from non-compliance with state law, as such AB 1594 has the potential to bring forth changes to the dangerous practices of the firearm industry;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, with the concurrence of the Mayor, that by the adoption of this Resolution, the City of Los Angeles hereby includes in its 2021-2022 State Legislative Program SUPPORT for AB 1594 (Ting) which would consider failure to comply with federal, state, or local law a public nuisance for members of the gun industry, holding them liable for any injury or death resulting from such failure to comply with applicable laws.

PRESENTED BY: White

MITCH O'FARRELL

Councilmember, 13th District

JAN 0 7 2022

SECONDED BY:

abg

WHEREAS, any official position of the City of Los Angeles with respect to legislation, rules, regulations, or policies proposed to or pending before a local, state, or federal governmental body or agency must have first been adopted in the form of a Resolution by the City Council with the concurrence of the Mayor; and

WHEREAS, in 2014, California voters approved Proposition 47, lowering penalties for certain lower drug and property offenses, and requiring thefts of property valued lower than \$950 to be charged as misdemeanors; and

WHEREAS, in light of a concerning trend of coordinated burglaries in recent months, including smash-and-grab and follow-home robberies, the tools available to law enforcement and prosecutors to provide for the public's safety should be increased; and

WHEREAS, currently pending before the California State Legislature is AB 1603 (Salas) which would decrease the threshold for value of property in thefts that can be charged as grand theft from \$950 to \$400; and

WHEREAS, the bill would become effective upon approval by California voters, providing the opportunity for voters to evaluate Proposition 47 and take steps to strengthen the law; and

WHEREAS, lowering the threshold for grand theft would serve as a powerful deterrent and serve to prevent any further escalation in coordinated thefts; and

WHEREAS, support for AB 1603 would demonstrate the City's unwavering commitment to protecting the wellbeing and property of residents and the retail business community;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, with the concurrence of the Mayor, that by the adoption of this Resolution, the City of Los Angeles hereby includes in its 2021-2022 State Legislative Program SUPPORT for AB 1603 (Salas) which would decrease the threshold for value of property in thefts that can be charged as grand theft from \$950 to \$400.

PRESENTED BY:

JOHN S. LEE

Councilmember, 12th District

In Bruce

SECONDED BY:

WHEREAS, any official position of the City of Los Angeles with respect to legislation, rules, regulations or policies proposed to or pending before a local, state or federal government body or agency must have first been adopted in the form of a Resolution by the City Council with the concurrence of the Mayor; and

WHEREAS, the illegal and deadly use of firearms by underage youths has become more common in recent years, often leading to tragedies such as those that occurred at Waukesha South in Wisconsin, Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School in Florida, and more recently at Hinkley High School in Colorado and Oxford High School in Michigan; and

WHEREAS, 75 percent of school shootings are facilitated by students having access to unsecured and/or unsupervised guns at home and over 80 percent of teens who commit suicide with a gun used one that belonged to someone in their home, and many of these incidents involved children whose parents were either unaware or unobservant of state and local laws concerning the ownership and handling of firearms; and

WHEREAS, the school shootings of classmates by students who have snuck guns onto campuses might have been prevented if the schools and parents had been better informed and prepared regarding the applicable laws and regulations; and

WHEREAS, California Assembly Bill 452 (Friedman) proposes that school districts, county offices of education and charter schools be required to inform parents and guardians of pupils at the beginning of each semester or quarter of the regular school term and during any new enrollment or transfer, of California's child gun access prevention laws and laws relating to the safe storage of firearms; and

WHEREAS, AB 452 would require the State Department of Education, in consultation with the Department of Justice, to develop and annually provide to school districts, county offices of education, and charter schools, and, upon request, to provide to private schools concise content regarding child access prevention and safe storage of firearms laws; and

WHEREAS, the bill would also make a school district, county office of education, charter school, private school, and the department immune from civil liability for any damages relating to that content; and

WHEREAS, these requirements would positively expand awareness and understanding of such laws, potentially preventing injury and loss of life among students and other underage family members.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, with the concurrence of the Mayor, that by adoption of this resolution, the City of Los Angeles hereby includes in its 2021-22 State Legislative Program SUPPORT for Assembly Bill 452 (Friedman) to increase the awareness of California firearms laws among educators, schoolchildren and their families.

PRESENTED BY:

PAUL KORETZ

Councilmember, Fifth District

SECONDED BY: Kant Krekorian

WHEREAS, California Vehicle Code Section 22507 authorizes cities to restrict the parking of vehicles, including but not limited to, vehicles that are six feet or more in height, on identified City streets during certain hours; and

WHEREAS, the Los Angeles Municipal Code Section 80.69.4 allows the Council to authorize by resolution, the streets upon which the parking of oversize vehicles shall be restricted between 2:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m.; and

WHEREAS, there is an increased problem with oversized vehicles parking along a segment of West 9th Street in San Pedro where large vehicles often park overnight and constrict travel lanes, thereby creating dangerous situations;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council, pursuant to the Municipal Code Section 80.69.4, and the California Vehicle Code Section 22507, hereby prohibits the parking of vehicles that are in excess of 22 feet in length or over six feet in height, during the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m., along both sides of West 9th Street between South Western Avenue and South Weymouth Avenue.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that upon the adoption of the Resolution, the Department of Transportation be directed to post signs giving notice of a "tow away, no parking" restriction for oversized vehicles, with the specific hours detailed, at the above locations; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Department of Transportation be authorized to make technical corrections or clarifications to the above instructions in order to effectuate the intent of this Resolution.

See / Mineson
JOE BUSCAINO
Councilmember, 15th District
QL S.L

WHEREAS, California Vehicle Code Section 22507 authorizes cities to restrict the parking of vehicles, including but not limited to, vehicles that are six feet or more in height, on identified City streets during certain hours; and

WHEREAS, the Los Angeles Municipal Code Section 80.69.4 allows the Council to authorize by resolution, the streets upon which the parking of oversize vehicles shall be restricted between 2:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m.; and

WHEREAS, a commercial area of Chatsworth is experiencing public safety issues associated with large vehicles that are parked overnight adjacent to businesses and block travel lanes, thereby creating hazardous conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council, pursuant to the Los Angeles Municipal Codes Section 80.69.4, hereby prohibits the parking of vehicles that are in excess of 22 feet in length or over 84 inches in height, during the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. along the following street segments:

Both sides of San Fernando Mission Road from Lindley Ave to Chimineas Ave

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that upon the adoption of this Resolution, the Department of Transportation be directed to post signs giving notice of a "tow away, no parking" restriction for oversized vehicles, with the specific hours detailed;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Department of Transportation be authorized to make technical corrections or clarifications to the above instructions in order to effectuate the intent of this Resolution.

PRESENTED BY:

JOAN S. LEE

Councilmember, 12th District

SECONDED BY: Joe Busean

TRANSPORTATION

MOTION

In the City of Los Angeles, the Los Angeles Fire Department is the exclusive provider of pre-hospital Emergency Medical Services (EMS). These rights are protected through Section 1797.201 (Section 201) of the Emergency Medical Services System and the Prehospital Emergency Medical Care Personnel Act, commonly known as the "EMS Act." For nearly four decades, Section 201 has ensured that anybody in the City of Los Angeles in need of emergency medical service will receive the very best pre-hospital care from the experienced, highly trained, and dedicated Firefighters, Emergency Medical Technicians (EMTs), and Paramedics of the LAFD.

Private ambulances in the City of Los Angeles also serve an important role in providing non-emergency transporting and transferring of patients to hospitals, nursing homes, and to special-care facilities.

The City regulates companies that provide transportation services in Los Angeles, including private ambulances. Through this, the City sets the fees (rates) that private ambulances can charge for their services. Typically, these fees are readjusted by LADOT every two to three years, with approval of the Board of Transportation Commissioners (BOTC) and the City Council. The fee readjustments are based on fee surveys that document any increases in the operating costs that the private ambulance companies incur. The last fee adjustment was in March 2017.

In October 2019, the BOTC unanimously approved a significant rate increase for private ambulance services in the City based on the maximum rate set by the County. The LADOT staff report gave detailed reasons for the increases, based on rising costs to the operators and the length of time that had passed since the last rate increase. The LADOT report never made it to the City Council. Instead, earlier this year LADOT staff began a new review of private ambulance rates, with the purpose of issuing a new report and rate recommendations based on a new fee survey, as opposed to the significantly higher rates set by the County.

In early 2020, the City declared a Local Emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, which is currently still in effect. The COVID-19 pandemic has created enormous strains on our healthcare system and on employers around the country – including the private ambulance industry. Ambulance industry costs, especially for skilled workers such as EMTs, fuel, vehicles and for personal protective gear, have risen dramatically in the past two years as demand outpaces supply. The outdated fees from 2017 have placed enormous burdens on private ambulance operators that are burdened by costs that are growing well in excess of inflation and as they struggle to keep their workforce. Some companies are facing the possibility that they may need to cease operations in Los Angeles, which would have negative effects for our residents who need non-emergency transportation within our city.

The private ambulance industry was constricting pre-pandemic as requirements and directives increased costs while revenues stagnated or shrunk, causing companies to leave the market or to go out of business entirely. It has grown much worse in the nearly two years of COVID-19. Companies being stretched thin while hemorrhaging money are liable to shut down. The City should not allow this to happen as our residents will possibly go without vital transport to or transfer between hospitals and other care facilities. The private ambulance industry must be stabilized.

Although the BOTC and DOT recommended a 53% increase over two years ago; based on cost increase data 20 percent is on the low end of the cost increases that ambulance companies have faced. Therefore, 20 percent would be an appropriate number for an emergency rate increase because it is less than half of the previous increase, and is less than the cost increases ambulance companies have faced. Further, it would provide temporary relief so they can continue to serve our vulnerable populations who need non-emergency transport until a new report is generated by DOT.

I THEREFORE MOVE that, in order to keep private ambulance companies able to operate for the benefit of the residents of Los Angeles and in consideration of the fact that the BOTC approved a significantly higher rate increase based on the 2019 LADOT report, and in order to ensure that private ambulance companies are able to continue operating for the benefit of the residents of Los Angeles in non-emergency situations, LADOT be directed to immediately submit a report to the BOTC to be heard at their January 27, 2022 meeting, requesting that they issue a new, temporary rate schedule for private ambulance services that utilize EMTs with an emergency rate increase of 20 percent across all services within the City's purview to set rates, that will remain in effect until (1) the end of the Local Emergency, or (2) this Council approves a new rate schedule upon completion of LADOT's new fee survey, whichever occurs first.

I FURTHER MOVE that LADOT be directed to submit a separate, new report with an updated rate increase based on LADOT's new fee survey, the 2019 private ambulance rate increase report from to the BOTC and, or a new report reflecting that report plus additional costs to operators who use EMTs, to Council — in accordance with the Los Angeles Administrative Code Section 22.484 et seq.— no later than February 28, 2022.

PRESENTED BY:

BOB BLUMENFIELD

Councilmember, District Three

SECONDED BY:

MONICA RODRIGUEZ Councilmember, District Seven

Nomia Ross